



Enterprise ERP, powered by Munis[®] User Guide for Employee Self Service (ESS)

Version 2024



Revision History

Date	Comments
04/19/2024	Updated for 2024.1
10/7/2022	Updated for 2021.7
7/22/2022	Updated for 2021.6



Table of Contents

Employee Self Service	5
Employee Self Service Users	5
Passwords	5
Resources	8
Announcements	8
Required Reading	9
Workflow Forwarding	9
Personal Information	10
Time Off	10
Paychecks	
Employee Time Off	
ESS Mobile Service URL	
Employee Self Service Menu	
Manager Self Service	
Tasks	15
Benefits Benefit Reviews/Changes Open Enrollment Make New Election	16 17
Life Events	
Certifications	
Credentials	
Issued Property	
Expense Reports	
Employee Notifications	24
Pay/Tax Information	
YTD Information	-
W-2 and 1099-R	
1095-В/С	
W-4 Paycheck Simulator	
Total Compensation	
Direct Deposit	
Performance Management	31
Evaluations	33
Goals	35



Feedback	36
Personal Information	37
Position Transfer	40
Substitute Teaching	40
Time Off Requesting Time Off	
Time Entry Entering Time for an Employee	
Punch-In/Punch-Out	47
Training Opportunities Courses Calendar My Training My Points	50 50
Service Requests	51
Training (Guest)	52
Career Planning	53
Employment Opportunities	54
New Applicants	57
Returning Applicants Upload Attachments Required Actions Unfinished Applications Custom Codes	
Applications	



Employee Self Service

Employee Self Service (ESS) is the Enterprise ERP Self Service application created specifically for current employees and job applicants. ESS accesses information from, and stores information in, the Enterprise ERP Human Resources Management programs. When you update information in ESS, updates also occur in the applicable Enterprise ERP programs.

For employees, ESS provides access to personal information, pay and tax information, benefits, as well as training, certification, and performance information. For applicants, ESS provides information on current job opportunities, manages applicant information, and provides automatic distribution of future employment information.

Employees must have a valid Enterprise ERP Self Service login to access the ESS application; applicants are required to create a username and password to access their profile and prospective employment information.

styler		θ	
Home	tyler		θ
Administration Employee Self Service Employment Opportunities	Home Administration General Administration User Administration Employee Administration	Administration Options general administration user administration employee administration 	

Employee Self Service Users

The Employee Self Service application requires users to have a unique username and password. If you are a system administrator, you can manually add users, or you can use the Migrate Users option in the Enterprise ERP Self Service User Administration program to create a set of ESS users from the Enterprise ERP Payroll Employee Master program. Enterprise ERP users are not automatically provided access to ESS, and there may be many employees who are not Enterprise ERP users, but who do use ESS.

Passwords

Password criteria for your organization is determined by your system administrator. Typically, when you are provided an ESS user account, your administrator will require that you change your password at your first login.



When you change your password, you must enter a password that meets your organization's password security policy. The Change Password page indicates whether the new password meets the enforcement criteria.

styler.			^
Home	Login Before proceeding you mu	ist change your password.	
Employment Opportunities	Current password		
	New password		
	Password strength	Acceptable	
	Confirm new password		
	New password hint		
	СНА	NGE CANCEL	

On the Change Password page, you must also enter a password hint. If you forget your password, click the Forgot Your Password? option on the Login page. This causes the application to send you an email message that contains your password hint.

styler			f	
Home Employment Opportunities Training	Login Username Password	Forgot your usern Forgot your pass		
	LOG IN	Home Employment Opportunities Training	Login Enter your username in the textbox below and click 'Sk email containing your password hint will be sent to you Username BACK TO LOGIN	end Hint*An u. ND HINT

If the password hint does not cause you to remember your password, click the link in the email message to generate a new password. The Password Regeneration page displays and when you select Initiate Password Regeneration, the application sends you an email with a temporary password that you can use to log in. In this case, you are forced to reset the password immediately upon login.



ESS Home Page

At log in, the ESS home page displays organizational announcements, tasks requiring your attention, personal information, time-off, and pay details. If you are a supervisor and the Names Level box is properly defined in User Administration > Employee Administration > Employee

styler_	B 8
	Welcome to Employee Self Service
Home	A You have documents that need to be read and acknowledged.
Employee Self Service	Announcements CONTACT
Manager Self Service	Welcome to Employee Self Service. This is a customized general message for all users to see.
Benefits	
Life Events	Required reading
Certifications	
Credentials	Employee Handbook Offer Letter
Issued Property	
Expense Reports	Workflow forwarding UPDATE FORWARDING
Employee Notifications	Forward time off requests to:
Pay/Tax Information	
Performance Management	Forward timesheets to:
Personal Information	□ Start: 4/8/2020 3:00 PM ▼ End: 4/9/2020 3:00 PM ▼
Position Transfer	
Substitute Teaching	Personal information VIEW MORE
Time Off	FREEMAN, MARGARET L
Time Entry	I TVLER DRIVE YARMOUTH, ME 04096
Training Opportunities	Phone Email
Service Requests	OFFICE: 207-772-1000 Email: margaret.freeman@tylertech.com
Career Planning	Time off
Employment Opportunities	REQUEST TIME OFF
	SHOW CURRENT BALANCES
	Projected Projected Available Earned
	SICK 40.00 40.00
	SHOW TIME OFF TAKEN
	Paychecks SHOW PAYCHECK AMOUNTS
	Previous paychecks Tools PAYCHECK SIMULATOR
	VIEW LAST YEAR'S W2
	Vear to date
	CHANGE YOUR W4
	Produce the off
	Employee time off VIEW CALENDAR
	BASTIEN, LINDSEY H
	SHOW CURRENT BALANCES
	Projected Projected Available Earned Earned
	VACATION 120.00 SICK 32.00 40.00
	PERSONAL 50.00 50.00
	BEREAVE 24.00 24.00 ALL OR NOT 4.00 4.00
	SHOW TIME OFF TAKEN
	SHUW TIME UFF TAKEN
	J F M A M J J A S O N D ► 2020
	HARMON, SYLVIA
	SHOW CURRENT BALANCES



Settings, the page displays time-off details for all employees who report to you. The Home page also provides a menu of the various options available within ESS.

The Home page menu varies according to the settings and permissions defined for ESS use in your organization.

Each menu option is described under the Employee Self Service Menu section.

Resources

The Resources option in the ESS header displays links to available employee resources, which include items like helpful websites (such as health insurer home pages), company pay schedules, or individual documents that are applicable to your organization (such as employee handbooks).

		θ
Welcome to Employee Self Service	Resources	
A You have documents that need to be read and acknowledged.	Benefits Web Site	
	Holiday Schedule	
Announcements	W4	FACT
Welcome to Employee Self Service. This is a customized general message for all users to see.	Performance Appraisal	
	Google	
Required reading	Employee Handbook	
Employee Handbook	Offer Letter	
Offer Letter	Noncompete Agreement	
	Life Insurance Beneficiary	

When you click a resources link, ESS displays the results in a new browser window. Resources are added and maintained in Employee Self Service Administration > Employee Administration > Document Administration.

Announcements

The Announcements section displays announcements that have been entered in Employee Self Service > Administration > Employee Administration > Application Settings.

Sectorizes		
	Welcome to Employee Self Service	
Home	Announcements	CONTACT
Employee Self Service	Welcome to Employee Self Service. This is a customized general message for all users to see.	
Manager Self Service	There will be a department meeting on Monday at 2pm.	
Benefits		
Life Events	Workflow forwarding	UPDATE FORWARDING
Certifications	☐ Forward time off requests to:	
Credentials		

If you have questions or comments regarding an announcement, or to submit an announcement, click Contact to open your default email application with a message addressed to your administration contact.



Required Reading

When your organization adds documents or other linked resources to ESS and they identify these resources as required, your Home page includes an announcement alerting you to the documents, and the page includes a Required Reading section that includes the resource.

styler			θ
Home	Welcome to Employee Self Service A You have documents that need to be read and acknowledged.		
Employee Self Service	Announcements	CONTA	ст
Manager Self Service	Welcome to Employee Self Service. This is a customized general message for all users to see.		
Benefits			
Life Events	Required reading		
Certifications	Employee Handbook		
Credentials	Offer Letter		
Issued Property		~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	~~

In this case, when you select the required item, the program provides the View Document option, and then an Acknowledge option.

Once you acknowledge receipt of the resource item, the acknowledgement is transferred to and stored in Enterprise ERP, and the document is removed from the Required Reading section of the ESS home page.

Note: All documents or links that the organization adds in Document Administration display on the Resources menu and are viewable by all ESS users.

Workflow Forwarding

For employees who participate in the workflow approval process, the Workflow Forwarding group is available on the Home page. If you have the appropriate permissions, this group includes the Forward Time-Off Requests To and Forward Timesheets To fields, along with the Start/End date fields. Using these fields, you can update your forwarding requirements and when you click Update Forwarding, the changes are confirmed.

If workflow forwarding is enabled in Munis, the settings in the Workflow Forwarding group reflect that setup. When you enable workflow in ESS, the program displays a confirmation message, and the Pending Timesheets and Manage Time-off Request pages indicate the applicable forwarding setting.

Certifications	Employee Handbook Offer Letter
Credentials Issued Property	
Expense Reports	Workflow forwarding UPDATE FORWARDIN
Employee Notifications	Forward time off requests to:
Pay/Tax Information	
Performance Management	Forward timesheets to:
Personal Information	□ Start: 4/8/2020 9:00 PM ▼ End: 4/9/2020 9:00 PM ▼
Position Transfer	
Substitute Teaching	Personal information VIEW MOR
Time Off	Free MABRAPOSE



Personal Information

In addition to organizational resources and announcements, the ESS Home page provides a summary of your personal information including your name, address, and contact information. Click View More to display your full profile, including your contact and hire information on the General tab, with the Demographics, Contacts, Dependents, and Tax Form Delivery tabs providing additional details.

man	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	man have have have have have have have have
Credentials		
Issued Property	Personal information	VIEW MORE
Expense Reports	FREEMAN, MARGARET	
Employee Notifications	YARMOUTH, ME 04096	
Pay/Tax Information	Phone OFFICE: 207-772-1000	Email Email: margaret.freeman@tylertech.com
Performance Management	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	

Time Off

Time Off displays a chart of your projected available and projected earned time off in hours. Click Request Time Off to initiate a time off request. Use the Show Current Balances and Show Time Off Taken options to review available balances and time used to date.

m	man and a second a		
Home	Time off		REQUEST TIME OFF
Employee Self Service	SHOW CURRENT BALANCES		
Manager Self Service	Projected Available	Projected Earned	
Benefits	VACATION 0.00 SICK 40.00	0.00 40.00	
Life Events	SHOW TIME OFF TAKEN		
Certifications			
Credentials	◀ J F M A M J J A S O N D ▶		
Issued Property	2021		
Expense Reports		man man	m

See <u>Time Off</u> for information on completing time off requests.



Paychecks

The Paychecks section displays information for the most recent pay periods in which you received pay. In the Tools section, options are available for simulating your paycheck and viewing W-2 and W-4 data. For more on these functions, refer to the <u>Pay/Tax Information</u> section of this document. For security purposes, year-to-date and last-paycheck earnings do not display initially. Click Show Paycheck Amounts to show the dollar amount; click Hide Paycheck Amounts to hide the amount. Click Details to display the Check Detail page.

edentials Paychecks		Marine Marine		SHOW PAYCHECK AMOUNT	2	
sued Property	Previous	paychecks Tools				
pense Reports	['Hori		and the second s	man	min	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
nployee Notifications		loyee Self Service	Paychecks			HIDE PAYCHECK AMOUNTS
y/Tax Information Yea	r to date Mar	ager Self Service		Previous paychecks	Tools	
rformance Management	Ben	-			PAYCHECK SIMULATOR	
			\$2,042.31		VIEW LAST YEAR'S W2	
Employee 1	· ····································	Events	Year to date		CHANGE YOUR W4	
	Cert	fications		1	CHANGE FOOR W4	
	🤸 tyler				₿ Ө	
	and the second s		<u> </u>			VIEW CALENDAR
		Year-to-D	ate Information		V	
	Home					
	Employee Self Service	Year: 2020 💌				
	Manager Self Service	Overview				
	Benefits	Gross YTD Earnings		\$2,042.31		
	Life Events	Earnings				
		ANN SALARY		\$1,892.31		
	Certifications	CAR ALLOW		\$150.00		
	Credentials					
	Issued Property	Deductions FICA		\$126.62		
	Expense Reports	401K		\$1,021.16		
	Employee Notifications	FED TAX		\$68.85		
	Pay/Tax Information	STATE TAX		\$50.19		
		NURSE DUES		\$18.91		
	YTD Information	DIRECT DEP N		\$756.58		
	W-2			70 0 · · · ·		



Employee Time Off

For supervisors, the Employee Time Off group displays a time off summary for the employees who report to you. Your organization's settings in Employee Self Service Administration determines the information that displays in this section.

tyler.		8
Home	Employee time off	VIEW CALENDAR
Employee Self Service	BASTIEN, LINDSEY H	
Employee Self Service Manager Self Service Benefits Life Events Certifications Credentials Issued Property Expense Reports Employee Notifications Pay/Tax Information Performance Management Personal Information Position Transfer Substitute Teaching	BASITIEN, LINUSET TH SHOW CURRENT BALANCES Projected Projected Available 150.00 SICK 32.00 SICK 32.00 PERSONAL 50.00 BEREAVE 24.00 ALL OR NOT 4.00 SHOW TIME OFF TAKEN 4.00 J F M J F M SHOW TIME OFF TAKEN 2020	
Time Entry	Available Earned 180.00	
Training Opportunities Service Requests Career Planning Employment Opportunities	SICK 105.00 105.00 PERSONAL 2.00 2.00 BEREAVE 2.00 3.00 FMLA 9,999.00 9,999.00	
Employment Annortunities	©2020 Tyler Technologies,	Inc.

ESS Mobile Service URL

The ESS Mobile Service URL group displays the QR code which holds the root web services URL for the ESS mobile app. The Copy to clipboard link allows you to copy the link to paste elsewhere.

Issued Property	man and a second a secon
Expense Reports	ESS Mobile Service URL
Employee Notifications	
Pay/Tax Information	
Performance Management	
Personal Information	
Position Transfer	https://webapps20211.tylertech.com/2021.1.0.0/qa/selfservice/margaret.freeman Copy to clipboard
Time Off	



Employee Self Service Menu

Options on the ESS menu are available according to your organization's Employee Self Service configuration. The menu can include the following options: Manager Self Service, Tasks, Benefits, Life Events, Certifications, Credentials, Issued Property, Expense Reports, Employee Notifications, Pay/Tax Information, Performance Management, Personal Information, Position Transfer, Punch In/Out, Substitute Teaching, Time Off, Time Entry, Training Opportunities, Service Requests, Career Planning, and Employment Opportunities. The list of available options varies according to the permissions and settings established for your user account and your organization's ESS configuration.

Manager Self Service

Manager Self Service allows managers to easily maintain the life cycle of their employees within their own ESS landing page. This enables managers who do not have Enterprise ERP access to easily view and update aspects of their employees' records.

For managers, the Manager Self Service page provides access to employee certifications, training, time-off, absences, task lists, evaluations, notifications, and job openings. Manager Self Service loads the employee information in grid format, but you can select to view the information in list format. An overview of requests awaiting your approval displays on panels below the employee cards. Click a category to view the details of pending requests.

To access details for an individual employee, click View Profile. In grid view, click the More button to view a menu of information pertaining to the selected employee, including time-off, evaluations, task lists, training, and certifications, or to request a replacement for the position.

styler		B 8
Home	Manager Self Service	
Employee Self Service Manager Self Service		
Time Off		
Personnel Actions		
Job Openings		
Interviewer Availability	LB EVALUATIONS (6) HJ SJ TJ TJ	
Interview Notes	TASK LIST (0)	
Tasks	BASTIEN, LINDSEY H NKINS, HENRIETTA JENKINS, SALLIE JENKINS, TIMOTHY A JONES, TED	
Benefits		
Life Events	CERTIFICATIONS (0)	
Certifications	VIEW PROFILE 🦧 REQUEST REPLACEMENT PROFILE 🦧 VIEW PROFILE 🙎 VIEW PROFILE	
Credentials		
Issued Property		
Expense Reports		
Employee Notifications	Time Off Time off awating approval (b) Jeb Openings Job openings and the approval (c)	~
Pay/Tax Information	**************************************	
Performance Management	5Mm 1.NFW	
Personal Information	Personnel Actions availing approval (5)	~
Position Transfer	200 Class Education 1	
Substitute Teaching	Job Openings Job openings asserting approval [2] Job Family JPAN TLL -	~
Time Off	Piccian 1310 CLERKI	
Time Entry	From N Evaluations Employee evaluations aventing approval (0) Location	~
Training Opportunities	E VARUARDATIS Unjugers et scalarda a realizing agui versi (s) 133 - FRANCE CEMARTMENT 979-26 90	
Service Requests	10 - NON UNION	
Career Planning	Training Employee training assetting approval (II) APPROVE RELECT FORWARD TO 🔻 HOLD Comment	~
Employment Opportunities		
	©2020 Tyler Technologies, Inc.	

The Notification icon on the employee card highlights pending items for the employee that await manager attention.



Click the Email option to email the selected employee.

Click Start Action to begin a personnel action for the selected employee. Then select the category of the action you wish to initiate.

	Manager Self Se	rvice					
ome							
mployee Self Service	Search	🤣 tyler					
anager Self Service			Dereennel Action				
Time Off		Home	Personnel Action	IS			
Personnel Actions		Employee Self Service	Requested				
Job Openings	LB	Manager Self Service					
Interviewer Availability		Time Off					
Interview Notes	BASTIEN, LINDSEY H	Personnel Actions	<		Selec	ct category	
asks	START ACTION	Job Openings	Employee: BASTIEN, LINDSEY H	1			
nefits		Interviewer Availability		_			
e Events		Interview Notes	\$	E	~		
rtifications		Tasks	SALARY EV CHANGE	ALUATION	OTHER		
edentials	mmm n	Benefits					
•		Life Events					
		Certifications	Awaiting approval				
		Credentials					
		Issued Property	Currently there are no personne	el actions awaiting	approval.		
		Example Reports	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	~~~~~		~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	m m

Alternatively, select the Personnel Actions from the Manager Self Service menu to enter a new personnel action for any of your employees, or edit or delete pending actions.

The Manager Self Service menu includes the Interviewer Availability and Interviewer Notes pages. The Interviewer Availability page provides the Add New, Add Recurring, and Delete options for adding or removing available interview times. Use the Add to Calendar option to create an exportable event reminder for your calendar.

styler_									8
	Interview Details								
Home	Sort	Interview Type	Job Opening	Interviewee	Date/Time	Notes	Scores		
Employee Self Service	Name 🔻	EXPLORATORY	NO JOB DESCRIPTION	JENKINS, TEMPLETON	4/15/2020	Templeton is a great candidate. He exhibited a desire to increase skills necessary for the position and displayed a	0	EDIT	
Manager Self Service	Search	EXPLORATORY	AVAILABLE	JENKINS, I EMPLETON	11:00 PM	professional demeanor.	U	EDIT	
Time Off	Name								
Personnel Actions									
Job Openings	Notes								
Interviewer Availability									
Interview Notes	Score								
Tasks	to								
Benefits	GO								
Life Events	Interview type V								
Certifications	Job opening ~								
			©20	20 Tyler Technologies, Inc.					

The Interviewer Availability page in ESS and the Interviewer Availability program on the Human Capital Management > Recruiting menu in Enterprise ERP share data, so when you update information in one source, the other source is automatically updated.



When Manager Self Service settings are selected on the MSS Field Access tab of Enterprise ERP Recruiting Settings program, managers can place requests for new or replacement job openings, or cancel existing job openings, from ESS. The requested positions display on the Job Openings page of the Manager Self Service module.

🐝 tyler						
Home Employee Self Service	Job Openings Requested					
Manager Self Service						
Time Off Personnel Actions	+	Position	Position	Position		
Job Openings Interviewer Availability Interview Notes	Add a position	HISTORIC PRESERVATION SPECIALIST Posted 3/26/2018	ANIMAL CARE SPECIALIST Posted 5/1/2019	PARK EDUCATION SPECIALIST Posted 8/8/2018		
Tasks Benefits		Location PARKS AND RECREATION	Location	Location		
Life Events	🤝 tyler		New	New		B 0
Certifications	Home	HISTORIC PRESERV	ATION SPECIALIST			
Credentials Issued Property Expense Reports	Employee Self Service Manager Self Service Tasks	Posting Dates: 3/26/2018to 12/31, Days Posted: 751 Position Type: New Position		ESERVATION SPECIALI	CANCEL JOB OPENING Candidate (0) Offer (0) Rejected (0) Declined (0)	
Employee Notifications Pay/Tax Information	Awaiting Certifications	Group: NON UNION			Accepted (0) Hired (0) New Applicant Withdrawn (1)	s (0)
Performance Management	Requisition Desc 13518-01 CLE Issued Property	Description: Withdrawn Applicant Name	Application Date Recruitment Status	Score Meets Requirements	Resume Cover Letter Applik	cation
Personal Information Position Transfer	Status 1 - NEW Type Vacant Positii Pay/Tax Information	JENKINS, TEMPLETON	94/13/2018	0.00	RESUME COVER LETTER APPL	LICATION
Subernina ravenina	Performance Management		An a ma			

To request a new position, click Add a Position. You can view the Job Openings page in grid or list format. Click the link for the position to see an overview of the job opening.

Tasks

The Tasks option displays on the menu when you have a task list requiring completion. The Home Page also displays an alert about the tasks and the due date. The Tasks page provides a list of activities that you need to complete for the assigned task list. This task list may be related to new hire activities, open enrollment activities, required documentation reviews, and so on.

🐝 tyler			Đ	0
Home	Welcome to Employee Self Service Training Courses Enrollment is due on October 12, 2021. You have completed 0 out of 1 required tasks.			
Employee Self Service Manager Self Service	Announcements	(
Tasks	Training Courses Errollment Due on A/24/2021 Training Courses Enrollment is due on April 24, 2021. You have completed 1 out of 1 required tasks Training Courses Errollment RETURN TO MENU			
	Training Certificate Upload	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~		

The tasks are generated within the Human Capital Management Employee Tasks programs; when tasks are completed the Enterprise ERP database is updated to indicate the completion.



Benefits

Benefits provides a summary of your current-year benefit elections. Using this option, you can view your current benefit selections. If enabled by your organization, you can also make elections for the upcoming year during the open enrollment period or petition to change current-year elections with a qualifying life event.

Benefit Reviews/Changes

The Benefits page includes various benefit options that are available according to your organization's ESS configuration, as established in the Enterprise ERP Enrollment Sections program. For example, if a benefit is designated as Always Available, then the Decline, No Changes, and Select options are shown. If a benefit is designated as Available for Life Events Changes, then the Report/View Life Events option is shown.

When you are updating benefits and you increase benefit amounts, the program displays a message indicating any supplemental forms that must be completed. The program also indicates any amount or increment restrictions for the acceptable values (for example, if an amount must be between \$n and \$\$nn or if an amount must be entered in specific increments).

The Benefits page opens displaying the Existing Benefits for an employee. Use the expand arrow to view coverage details, including annual employee cost, annual employer cost, cost to each by pay period. Archived enrollment summaries are accessed through the Click Here to View Your Archived Enrollment Summaries link at the bottom of the page.

🐝 tyler				ì 🕐	4
	Existing Benefits				
Home	You must complete your open enrollment be	efore 7/31/2019.			
Employee Self Service	AETNA 1				
Manager Self Service	Declined				
Tasks	OPTIONAL LIFE INSURANCE				
Benefits	Declined				
Open Enrollment	PRUDENTIAL HEALTH INSURANCE				
Life Events	No election made				
Certifications	HEALTH COVERAGE				\sim
Credentials	PRUDENTIAL INDIVIDUAL HEALTH COVERAGE 2	2018 – Premium: \$2,940.00			
Issued Property	BLUE CROSS/BLUE SHIELD Declined	\mathbf{A}			
Expense Reports	Decimed				_
Employee Notifications	DENTAL COVERAGE DELTA DENTAL - EMPLOYEE ONLY - Premium: \$	\$12,000.04			~
Pay/Tax Information					_
Performance Evaluations	Total premium amount		\$	514,940	0.04
Personal Information	Click here to view your archived enrollment summaries.	HEALTH COVERAGE			
Position Transfer	Cito neer your archived enrollment summanes.	PRUDENTIAL INDIVIDUAL HEALTH COVERAGE 20)18 – Premium	: \$2,940.0	0
Substitute Teaching		Your existing benefit PRUDENTIAL INDIVIDUAL HEALTH COVERAGE 2018			
Time Off		Premium \$2,94	.00 .73		
Time Entry		Pay period employer cost \$7	5.38		
Training Opportunities	-	Annual employer cost \$1,96	5.00		
		Monthly Cost \$	1.75		



Open Enrollment

Open Enrollment provides benefit elections for an upcoming coverage period. Click the Open Enrollment link from the Existing Benefits page or open the Open Enrollment page from the menu. During the Open Enrollment period established by your organization, you can select your preferred options or decline one or more of the benefits provided.

🐝 tyler			B	8
Employee Self Service Benefits	Open Enrollment – Make Elections Make a selection for each benefit, then click "Continue". You must submit this enrollment by 7/1/2020.			
Open Enrollment	Please complete your benefit enrollment selections!			
Life Events Certifications	HEALTH EMPLOYEE ONLY - \$25.00		EDIT	~
Credentials Expense Reports Pay/Tax Information	DENTAL EMPLOYEE ONLY - \$0.00	DECLINE	EDIT	~
Performance Management Personal Information Substitute Teaching	FLEXIBLE SPENDING DEPENDENT FLEX SPENDING ACCOUNT DEPENDENT - \$0.00	DECLINE	EDIT	~
Time Off			405	
Time Entry Training Opportunities	Estimated total cost per pay period		\$25	.00
Employment Opportunities			CONT	NUE
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~		$\sim$	~~~~	$\sim$

Depending on your organization's ESS settings, the Paycheck Simulator link may be available. When you use the paycheck simulator, ESS indicates how your benefit selections will affect your pay. See the <u>Pay/Tax Information</u> section of this document for more information on using the Paycheck Simulator.

#### Make New Election

The new benefit election options display on the Open Enrollments–Make Elections screen. Click Decline to decline the benefit, click Select to choose the benefit, or click No Changes to use the existing elections from the previous enrollment campaign. The No Changes option is available if the section has been designated to Allow No Changes in the Enrollment Sections program in



Enterprise ERP. Depending on your organization's ESS configuration, ESS may display the costs for options both annually and by pay period.





If the benefit option you select requires that you specify one or more dependents or beneficiaries, ESS displays this information on the selection page. Select a dependent or beneficiary from the list or use the Add New Beneficiary option to create a new beneficiary/dependent record.

	Benefits – RETIREMENT 401K	🤸 tyler			6	
ime	401K RETIREMENT PLAN     Coverage must be a		Benefits – RETIREMENT 401	V.	1999 - 1994 1997 - 1997	
ployee Self Service	Pay period employee cost \$949.04 + ADD NEW DEPEND Pay period employer cost \$949.04	Home	Benefits - RETIREMENT 401			
nager Self Service	Pay period employer cost \$949.04 Employee annual cost \$24,675.04	Add a new dependent	401K RETIREMENT PLAN	Coverage can be added for additional dependents + ADD NEW DEPENDENT		
efits	Employer annual cost \$24,675.04		Pay period employee cost \$949.04 Pay period employer cost \$949.04	✓ Tim Bastien Edit   Remove		
pen Enrollment	Monthly cost \$2,056.25 Amount	First name*	Employee annual cost \$24,675.04	• Im bastien con Pernove		
Events	0	Middle initial	Employer annual cost \$24,675.04 Monthly cost \$2,056.25			
ifications	I Decline		Amount			
lentials	U i Decline	Last name*	0			
		Suffix	I Decline			
			O I Decline			
ed Property		Suffix Date of birth+	I Decline		CANCEL CON	TIN
			I Dedine		CANCEL CON	TIN
		Date of birth+ Gender	IDedite	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	CANCEL CON	
		Date of birth*	IDedine	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	CANCEL CON	
		Date of birth+ Gender	IDedine	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	CANCEL CON	
		Cate of birth*	IDedine	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	CANCEL CON	
		Cate of bitty Gender Relationships Mandicapped Social Security number	IDedine	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	CANCEL CON	TTIN
		Gender Relationshipe	IDedine	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~		~~~

When you have completed your open enrollment choices, the program displays a summary for each benefit type. To make changes, click Modify. Once you have verified that your selections are correct, click Submit.

🔅 tyler		
mployee Self Service	Review your enrollment	
	HEALTH	
Benefits	EMPLOYEE ONLY Pay period employee cost	\$25.00
Open Enrollment	Pay period employer cost	\$225.00
ife Events	Annual employee cost Annual employer cost	\$600.00 \$5.400.00
life Events	Monthly Cost	\$5,400.00 \$50.00
Certifications		
Credentials		
	DENTAL EMPLOYEE ONLY	
Expense Reports	Pay period employee cost	\$0.00
Pay/Tax Information	Pay period employer cost	\$200.00
	Annual employee cost	\$0.00 \$4.800.00
Performance Management	Annual employer cost Monthly Cost	\$4,800.00
Personal Information	wontiny oost	00.00
Substitute Teaching	FLEXIBLE SPENDING DEPENDENT FLEX SPENDING ACCOUNT DEPENDENT	
Time Off	Pay period employee cost	\$0.00
	Annual employee cost	\$0.00
Time Entry	Monthly Cost	\$0.00
Fraining Opportunities		
Employment Opportunities	TOTAL PAY PERIOD EMPLOYEE COST	\$25.00
imployment opportunities	TOTAL ANNUAL EMPLOYEE COST	\$600.00
		CANCEL MODIFY SUBMIT



#### Life Events

When you select Life Events, the program displays the change options offered by your organization. Life event codes are maintained in the Enterprise ERP Qualifying Event Codes program. Click Start on the life event to report.

🔆 tyler					8 8				
Home	Life Events								
Employee Self Service	Event	Description		Next Step					
Manager Self Service	New baby	Please send a birth certificate	to HR.	START	Life Events	3			
Tasks	Death of spouse	Please send a death certificat	te to HR.	START	Pending Life Events				
Benefits	Divorce	Description not available		START	You have no pending life	events.			
Life Events	Job change	Description not available		START	Effective date 4/	22/2020			
Certifications Credentials	Marriage		riage license following updating this record	START	SUBMIT CAN	CEL			
Issued Property					7				
Performance Management	🧇 tyler								
	Home	Life Events	cessfully submitted. 🔍 🛕 Life events are proc	essed one at a time. Wh	en your pending life even	is processed, you will	be able to add another.		
	Employee Self Service	Pending Life Events							
	Manager Self Service	Code	Description	Effective Date		Election E		SUBMITTED	
	Benefits	Divo	DIADLOF	412212020		5/ 22/ 2020		JODIWITTED	
	Life Events								
				c	2020 Tyler Technologies,	Inc.			

When you select the life event, the page refreshes to indicate whether documentation is required to support the change. Use the Required Documentation box to upload any required documentation. The default value for the Effective Date field is the current date, but you can update this. Click Submit to save the change and display a summary of the event submitted.

### Certifications

Certifications displays a list of your education or training certifications. This list includes the certification type, area, level, number, and effective and expiration dates. If you are a supervisor, select a name from the Employee list to view that employee's certifications.

styler							E	8
	Certifications						ires	
Home								
Employee Self Service	Employee: MARTIN, MARY M 🔻							
Manager Self Service								
Home Employee Self Service Manager Self Service Tasks Benefits Life Events Certifications	Туре	Area	Level	Number	Effective	Expires		
Tasks	ACCOUNTING	FINANCE PLANNING	HIGH LEVEL		4/12/2018	7/31/2020		
Benefits								
Life Events								
Certifications								
Gradantis	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	mmm	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	$\sim\sim\sim\sim\sim$	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	$\sim\sim\sim$	~~~~	~~~~



## **Credentials**

The Credentials page identifies the credentials you have earned. Click View All to see all credentials, including those that have lapsed. Click View Current to view the credentials that are up to date. If you are a supervisor, select a name from the Employee list to view that employee's credentials.

styler						8
	Credentials					
Home						
Employee Self Service	VIEW ALL					
Manager Self Service	Туре	Number	Effective date	Expiration date		
Benefits	CPA FIRST LEVEL CERTIFICATION	37373737	1/1/2020	1/1/2023		
Life Events	CERTIFIED FINANCIAL PLANNER	CFP00-001	6/30/2019	6/3/2022		
Certifications						
Credentials						
Jewed Property	man man		~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	^	$\sim$	

## **Issued Property**

The Issued Property page identifies any employer property issued to you and describes the item or items.

styler								8
	<b>Issued Property</b>							
Home								
Employee Self Service	Type	Item	Description	Location	<u>Quantity</u>	Date Issued		
Manager Self Service	Capital Asset	9	TABLET PC	INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPT	1.00	01/01/2019		
Benefits								
Life Events								
Certifications								
Credentials								
Issued Property								
Expense Reports	man have	$\sim \sim \sim \sim$	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~			~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	~~~~	$\sim \sim$



## **Expense Reports**

The Expense Reports group displays a list of your current expense claims, along with the status for each. Use the Add Claim option on the menu or the Add New button to add a new claim.

styler.					8
Home	Expense report	s			+ ADD NEW
Employee Self Service	Date	Description	Id	Status	Total
Manager Self Service Tasks	7/23/2018 - 7/27/2018	Park Managers Conference Fees	43	Created	\$175.00
Benefits	7/23/2018 - 7/27/2018	Park Managers Conference Fees	42	Created	\$175.00 COPY
Life Events Certifications					
Credentials					
Issued Property					
Expense Reports					
Add claim	mm	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	$\sim\sim\sim\sim\sim\sim$		~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

#### Enter your claim details. All fields marked with the asterisk (*) are required.

styler				8
Home	Claim type	CASH ADVANCE, CONFERENCE EXPENSES - ESTIMATED		
Employee Self Service	Department*	PARKS & RECREATION		
Manager Self Service	Description*	Park Managers Conference		
Tasks Benefits	Event	select one (optional)		
Life Events	Start date*	09/14/2020		
Certifications	0	08:00		
Credentials	Start time	NOTE: Use HH:MM format. For example, use '08:30' for 8.30 am, '17:00' for 5 pm.		
Issued Property	End date*	09/17/2020		
Expense Reports				
Add claim	End time	14:00 NOTE: Use HH:MM format. For example, use '08:30' for 8:30 am, '17:00' for 5 pm.		
Employee Notifications				
Pay/Tax Information	Destination city	Richmond		
Performance Management	Deptie stien state			
Personal Information	Destination state	VA		
Position Transfer	Destination country			
Substitute Teaching	_			
Time Off	SAVE CANCEL		~~	$\sim$



Once you have defined the basic receipt details:

- 1. Click Save to display the Expenses and Receipts page.
- 2. Expand the various amount lists to add the expense information.

styler				8
	Expenses and rec	eipts		
Home	Unsaved claim	•	EDIT DETAILS	
Employee Self Service	Claim type	CASH ADVA	NCE, CONFERENCE EXPENSES	
Manager Self Service	Department	PARKS & RE		
Tasks	Description	Park Manag	ers Conference	
	Event			
Benefits	Start date	Monday, Se	otember 14, 2020 8:00 AM	
Life Events	End date	Thursday, S	eptember 17, 2020 2:00 PM	
Certifications	Destination city	Richmond		
	Destination state	VA	Expense information	
Credentials	Destination country		•	
Issued Property	Cash advance	\$0.00	Expense type TRAVEL V	
Expense Reports	Total amount claimed	\$0.00	1 @ \$ 277 each =	
Add claim			\$277.00	
Edit details	Unit expenses \$0.00		Cash advance 277.00	~
Expenses & receipts			Date incurred 04/14/2020	
Employee Notifications	Attach documents		Comments airfare	~
Pay/Tax Information				
Performance Management	REVIEW SAVE FOR LATER	CANCEL	CANCEL SAVE	
Personal Information				
Time Entry				
			©2020 Tyler Technologies, Inc.	

- 3. If applicable, attach supporting documents.
- 4. Once you have uploaded all necessary receipts, click Review. ESS displays the Verify Expenses page. If you submit a new claim using an expense template that has an annual spending limit and your claim causes you to exceed that limit, the Verify Expenses page displays a warning message that notes the annual spending limit for the claim type and the sum of your claim amounts.
- 5. Click Submit Claim to complete the process. The program displays a confirmation message at the top of the page.

styler		<b>₽</b>	8
	Confirmation		
Home	📀 Your claim, number 45, was successfully submitted. 🚳		
Employee Self Service	Claim details		
Manager Self Service	Comments	Park Managers Conference	
	Claim type	CASH ADVANCE, CONFERENCE EXPENSES	
Tasks	Status	Entering	
Benefits	Department	PARKS & RECREATION	
Life Events	Start date	Monday, September 14, 2020 8:00 AM	
Life Events	End date	Thursday, September 17, 2020 2:00 PM	
Certifications	Destination city	Richmond	
Credentials	Destination state	VA	
man man	muse man to the more ward	\$272.00	~



6. To use an existing claim as the base record for a new claim, click Copy, enter the details for the new claim in the Copy Claim dialog box, and click OK; the program displays the new claim record. Update the details or amounts, as appropriate.

styler					8
Home	Expense report	s			
Employee Self Service					+ ADD NEW
Manager Self Service	Date	Description	ld	Status	Total
Tasks	7/23/2018 - 7/27/2018	Park Managers Conference Fees	43	Created	\$175.00
Benefits	7/23/2018 - 7/27/2018	Park Managers Conference Fees	42	Copy claim 42	\$175.00 COPY
Life Events				✓ Keep start and end dates	
Certifications				New start date New end date	
Credentials				✓ Keep dates on unit expenses	
Issued Property				New default unit expense date	
Expense Reports					
Add claim				Keep detail line comments	
June	Man and a start of the start of	man and a second a	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	CANCEL	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

### **Employee Notifications**

Employee Notifications displays all types of employee notifications, such as welcome letters, contract notifications, salary notifications, and so on. Notifications are created in Enterprise ERP using templates in the Employee Notifications program. You can create a notification for one employee and designate that it displays on ESS, or you can use the generate option to create notifications for multiple employees. The program allows you to set parameters for the notifications, such as whether the employee can provide feedback and responses through ESS.

If the Feedback and Response fields are enabled, when you click View, the program displays the specific notification screen where you can enter this information.

🔆 tyler					8			
	Employee Notifi	cations						
Home	Date Created	Description	Verified	Date Verified				
Employee Self Service	4/15/2020	EMPLOYEE ISSUED ITEMS	No		VIEW			
Manager Self Service								
Benefits	10/17/2017	NEW HIRE COMPLETE	Yes	7/17/2018	VIEW			
Life Events	🐟 tyler				¥			Π
Certifications	Se Gitter							
Credentials		EMPLOYEE ISSUED ITEN	/IS					
ssued Property	Home	Dear Employee 85,						
xpense Reports	Employee Self Service	You have 85 checked out to you. You		21				
mployee Notifications	Manager Self Service		received this item on . I	Please return this item	to the equipment depart	iment when you are infishe	J.	
ay/Tax Information	Benefits	Thank you for your cooperation.						
	Life Events	Feedback Thank you for the reminder. I will return the	14	-				
	Certifications	mank you for the reminder. I will return the	items at the end of the mont	n.				
	Credentials							
	Issued Property	Response		la l				
	Expense Reports	NEEDS RESPONSE V						
	Employee Notifications							
	Pay/Tax Information	SUBMIT						
	Performance Management	nt Questions? Comments? Send an em	ail to the Human Resour	ces Department.				
	Personal Information	EMAIL						
	$\sim$	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	m	$\sim\sim\sim\sim\sim\sim$	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	m m	$\sim$	~



## **Pay/Tax Information**

Pay/Tax Information provides current payroll and payroll history details. The payroll history is stored in the Enterprise ERP Employee Pay History program. If you are a supervisor and you have the appropriate permissions, you can view information for any employees who report to you by selecting a name from the Employee list.

tyler technologies							
	Pay/Tax	(Information					
Employee Self Service	_						
Benefits	Year 2020 -						
Life Events							
Certifications	Check Date	Pay Period	Status	Gross Pay	Net Pay		
Certifications	4/24/2020	4/10/2020 - 4/21/2020		\$2,220.00	\$1,443.01 DETAILS		
Credentials				.,			
Expense Reports							
Pay/Tax Information							
YTD Information							
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	mon	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	man m	~~ ~	m	~ ~	~^

When you click Details, the program displays the Check Detail page, which contains the pay advice information for the check. You cannot modify pay or tax information; it is display only.

Siges						l	
	Check Detail						
ployee Self Service	CHIN, AMY Y						
nefits	Overview						
Events	Check Date	4/24/2020					
	Pay Period	4/10/2020 - 4/21/202	0				
rtifications	Check Number	113963					
edentials	Check Status	40.000.00					
pense Reports	Gross Pay	\$2,220.00 \$1,443.01					
	Net Pay	\$1,443.01					
y/Tax Information	Pay Breakdown						
YTD Information	Рау Туре		Days/Hrs	Rate	Amount		
N-2	ANN SALARY		80.00	21.5000	\$1,720.00		
1099-R	LONGEVITY		0.00	0.0000	\$500.00		
1095-B	Total				\$2,220.00		
1093-D							
095-C	Deductions						
<i>I</i> -4	Deduction Type				Amount		
aycheck Simulator	FICA				\$135.78		
-	MEDICARE				\$31.76		
Total Compensation	401K				\$222.00		
irect Deposit	FED TAX				\$186.51		
ormance Management	STATE TAX				\$74.14		
rsonal Information	PENSION				\$88.80		
bstitute Teaching	BCBS INDIV				\$30.00		
, i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	AETNA LIFE				\$8.00		
e Off	Total				\$776.99		
ie Entry							
ining Opportunities	RETURN TO PAY/TAX INFORMATION						
plovment Opportunities							



YTD Information

The Year-to-Date Information page contains a cumulative view of payroll figures for a specific year.

🔆 tyler			8
	Year-to-Date Information		
mployee Self Service			
Benefits	Year: 2020 💌		
ife Events	Overview		
Certifications	Gross YTD Earnings	\$2,220.00	
redentials	Earnings		
	ANN SALARY	\$1,720.00	
Expense Reports	LONGEVITY	\$500.00	
Pay/Tax Information			
YTD Information	Deductions		
f i D information	FICA	\$135.78	
W-2	MEDICARE	\$31.76	
1099-R	401K	\$222.00	
1099-K	FED TAX	\$186.51	
1095-B	STATE TAX	\$74.14	
1095-C	PENSION	\$88.80	
1095-0	BCBS INDIV	\$30.00	
W-4	AETNA LIFE	\$8.00	
Paycheck Simulator			
Total Compensation			
Direct Deposit			
	-		



W-2 and 1099-R

The W-2 and 1099-R pages display information regarding federal and state taxes and withholdings. This information is drawn from the Payroll W-2 and 1099-R programs.

tyler			
	W-2 Information		
ployee Self Service	Year: 2015 - 0 💌		
efits			
Events	AMY CHIN		
Events	YEAR: 2015		
ifications	287 MIDDLE RD BROOKLYN, NY 11230		
entials			
ense Reports	3RD PARTY SICK STATUTORY EMPLOYEE		
	STATUTORY EMPLOYEE		
/Tax Information	Wages and Tax		
TD Information		GROSS	т
V-2	FIT	\$36,230.00	\$4,428
	FICA	\$42,250.00	\$2,619.
099-R	MEDICARE	\$42,250.00	\$612.
095-B	SIT - MA	\$36,230.00	\$1,660.
095-C			
	DEP CARE		\$0.
/-4	SOCIAL SECURITY TIPS		\$0.
aycheck Simulator	ALLOCATED TIPS		\$0.
otal Compensation	NONQUAL		\$0.
irect Deposit	Box 12		
ormance Management	D 401K DEFER DD EMPR HEALTH COST		\$4,300. \$3,750.
sonal Information	DD EMIFR HEALTH GUST		\$3,/50.
stitute Teaching	Box 14		
stitute Teaching	14Y RETIREMENT		\$1,720.
e Off	14X LIFE		\$184.
e Entry			

1095-B/C

The 1095-B/C pages display information regarding employee insurance coverage data relating to the Affordable Care Act. This information is drawn from Payroll Employee 1095-B/C



yler									
Tacini di per	1005 P								
loves Colf Convise	1095-B								
loyee Self Service	Year: 2016 - 1 💌								
efits	Void Corrected								
Events	Part I - Responsible Individu	al							
ifications	Name of responsible individual								ABIGAIL SULLI
	Date of birth								3/3/1962
dentials	Street address								ONE TYLER DR
ed Property	City or town								YARMOUTH
ense Reports	State or province								ME
	Country and ZIP or foreign posta								04096
oloyee Notifications	Enter letter identifying Origin of								В
/Tax Inform	Small Business Health Options I	Program Marketplace Identif	ier						
TD Inform									
	. 1095-	c							
V-2 Employee Self	Service								
099-R	Year: 2016	-1 💌							
095-B Benefits	Void 🗆 🖉	Corrected							
Life Events	Employee								
095-C Certifications	Name of employee	lovee							ABIGAIL SULLIVAN
	Street address								ONE TYLER DRIVE
Credentials	City or town								YARMOUTH
Issued Proper	ty State or provin	nce							ME
Current Dave	Country and Z	IP or foreign postal code							04096
Expense Repo									
Employee Not	ifications Part II - Emp Plan Start Mo	loyee Offer and Coverage	0						
Pay/Tax Infor									
	11.10	-							
YTD Inform	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep
W-2					,				
1099-R	Box 15: Emplo	oyee Required Contribution							
	All 12 months								
1095-B	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep
1095-C									

W-4

The W-4 page displays your current W-4 deduction information. To update this information, click Edit, enter the new information, select the confirmation check boxes, and then click Submit.

styler		e e
	W-4 Information	on
Employee Self Service		
Benefits	FEDERAL Marital status	W-4 Information
Life Events	MARRIED	Marital Status
Certifications	Exemptions 0	MARRIED If you are married but would like to withhold at the higher single rate, select "Single".
Credentials	Additional amount	Exemptions
Issued Property	\$100.0000	
Expense Reports		Additional Amount (\$) 100.00
Employee Notifications		If your last name differs from your social security card, check here.
Pay/Tax Information	MAINE	Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined these changes, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, verify that they are correct and complete.
-	Marital status	MAINE Marital Status
YTD Information	MARRIED	MARRIED
W-2	Exemptions 0	If you are married but would like to withhold at the higher single rate, select "Single".
1099-R	Additional amount	Exemptions
1095-B	\$25.0000	0 Additional Amount (\$)
1095-C	EDIT	25.00
W-4		If your last name differs from your social security card, check here.
how have	$\sim\sim\sim\sim\sim\sim$	Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined these changes, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, verify that they are correct and complete.
		SUBMIT CANCEL



W-4 changes must be approved and processed by your Human Resources department. When you submit changes, ESS displays a confirmation indicating that your change request has been submited for approval.

W-4 Information
Your W4 information was submitted for approval.

Paycheck Simulator

The Paycheck Simulator simulates adjustments to your pay, tax, or deductions to demonstrate how the changes would affect your total pay. It does not permanently alter your pay records.

🔸 tyler							8
	Paycheck Sim	ulator					
Home	Pay cycle: 1 🔻 Switchin	g deduction cycles will reset the entire p	age.				
Employee Self Service	Pay Details						
Manager Self Service	Job	Pay		Hours	Rate	Percentage	Amount
Benefits	DIRECTOR OF FINANCE (FDIR)	ANNUAL SALARY (111)		80.00	23.6539	0.00	1892.31
Life Events							
Certifications	DIRECTOR OF FINANCE (FDIR)	CAR ALLOWANCE (900)		0.00	0.0000	0.00	150.00
Credentials	2020 or later W-4	Marital	European Star Schuller	x Dependents Amount Other Incom	Defection		
Issued Property				x Dependents Amount Other Incom	ne Deductions		
Expense Reports	Federal Tax	MARRIED	0				
Employee Notifications	State Tax	MARRIED	1				
Pay/Tax Information	Local Tax	•	0				
YTD Information		Paycheck Simulation					
W-2	Deductions	This is an estimation of your pay based on the	information you have entered.				4
1099-R	Description	Current Simulation					Amount
1095-B	NURSE DUES	Gross Pay 3828.47 2042.31 Federal Tax 630.73 68.85					18.91
1095-C	401K	State Tax 245.76 50.19 Local Tax 0.00 0.00					1021.16
W-4		FICA 237.37 126.62 Medicare 0.00 0.00					
Paycheck Simulator		Other Deductions 35.06 1040.07 Net Pay 2679.55 756.58					0
Total Compensation		RETURN					
Direct Deposit	CALCULATE RESET						
Loan Information							
Payroll Calendars							
Performance Management							
			©2020 Tyler	Technologies, Inc.			

To simulate changes to your paycheck, select the pay cycle for which to simulate a change, enter the change values, and click Calculate. The program displays the updated amounts based on the simulated adjustments.

Total Compensation

The Total Compensation page displays the details of the compensation you receive from your organization. The Compensation section displays your compensation as paid compensation and benefits. The Benefit Contributions section displays your benefit contributions and your employer's benefit contributions. The Paid Compensation Breakdown section displays a pie chart that shows what percentage of your total compensation each specific compensation type comprises.



According to your organization's configuration, the Total Compensation section may display information regarding other benefits in the Additional Benefits section. The options for this page are managed in the Human Resources Total Compensation Report program.

Sk tyler					U V
Employee Self Service Benefits	Total Compensation				
Life Events			87%		13%
Certifications			PAID COMPENSATION		BENEFITS
Credentials					
Expense Reports		958	\$2,220.00		
Pay/Tax Information		50	Price Constitution		\$2,551.94
YTD Information			±		COMPRESSION A HOMETS
W-2		208 201 201 201 201 201 202	\$331.94		
1099-R		PAID COMPENSATION	BURGET S		
1095-B					
1095-C	Benefit Contributions				
W-4	BENEFIT FICA			EMPLOYER 135.78	EMPLOYEE
Paycheck Simulator	Medicare			135.78 31.76	135.78 31.76
Total Compensation	Deferred Compensation Retirement			44.40	222.00 88.80
Direct Deposit	Health Insurance			120.00	30.00
Performance Management	TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS			\$331.94	\$508.34
Personal Information					
Substitute Teaching	Paid Compensation Breakdown				
Time Off Time Entry Training Opportunities Employment Opportunities	Bose Pay (77.48%) Longevity (22.52%)				
	Additional Benefits				
			s. You are eligible to receive up to 90 days of short term disability. If you are disabled for more than	n 90 days, you are eligible to receive a taxable long term disability benefit.	
		e insurance benefits to you. If your death is a result of an accidental injury, your benefici	ry will receive an additional amount equal to the life amount.		
	 Tylertown recognizes the importance for yo 	u to have time off. Based on your longevity the amount of days earned will vary.			

Direct Deposit

The Direct Deposit page provides the details for your direct deposit accounts. If your organization allows, you can update the accounts and amounts allotted to each account by clicking Edit on the Direct Deposit Accounts page.

styler		8
Employee Self Service Benefits Life Events Certifications Credentials Issued Property Expense Reports	Direct Deposit Accounts The primary account is used for funds that are not disbursed to secondary percentage-based or amount-based accounts. Bank NATIONS BANK Account number ******5555 Account type Checking Percentage	0
Expense Reports Employee Notifications Pay/Tax Information VTD Information W-2 1099-R 1095-B	IO0% Account type EDIT DELETE SUBMIT Percentage IO0 SAVE CANCEL	
1095-C Direct Deposit	©2020 Tyler Technologies, Inc.	

When you select the Submit This Account for Approval check box, the program submits the changes to your Human Resources department for approval. Once they are approved, the changes are effective to the next payroll cycle. If your organization uses the prenote process for



verifying direct deposit transactions, the change may be delayed until the prenote test is complete.

You cannot make additional changes until these changes have been approved.

Performance Management

The Performance Management group on the ESS menu provides access to all evaluation functionality, as well as details on established goals and feedback provided by your supervisor or others. You can view evaluations that you have received and given. If you are a supervisor, you can view evaluations that your employees have received. With the appropriate permissions, you can also create evaluations. For evaluations to be available in Employee Self Service, the Post Online check box must be selected in the Human Resources Employee Evaluations program.

When employees click Performance Management on the ESS menu, the Performance Overview page displays an overview of performance details, including evaluations, goals, and feedback.

For managers and supervisors, Performance Management opens the Performance Management Home page, which provides an overview of your team and access to evaluations, goals, feedback, and evaluations analytics pages.

er.				6
	Performance Manage	ement Home		
Self Service	My Team Search		٩	
Self Service	Name	Job Class	Manager	Action
	JENKINS, HENRIETTA	HEAD ACCOUNTANT	FREEMAN, MARGARET L	VIEW PERFORMANCE
5	JOSEPH, DOMINIC	SUBSTITUTE DAY TO DAY ND	JENKINS, HENRIETTA	VIEW PERFORMANCE
ons Is	MARTIN, MARY M	ACCOUNTANT I	JENKINS, HENRIETTA	VIEW PERFORMANCE
operty	<u>'_'</u>			
leports Notifications				
formation	EVALUATIONS	Add or continue working on evaluations for your employees or view completed evaluations for your employees	ANALYTICS	View trends and analytics for your employees to identify areas that may need attention
nce Management				
lions	GOALS	Set new goals for your employees or view current employee goals	FEEDBACK	Leave feedback for your employees or view your own feedback
ick		-		



Click View Performance to display the Performance Overview for the selected employee or yourself.

🤝 tyler			8
Home	Performance Overvi	ew	
Employee Self Service	Employee: JENKINS, HENRIETTA 🔻		
Manager Self Service		Performance Evaluation Goal Progress	
Tasks Benefits		EVALUATION PERIOD 4/3/2017 - 4/2/2018	
Life Events		EVALUATION TYPE PROBATIONARY EVALUATION	
Certifications	· · · /	OVERALL RATING EXCELLENT 0% December 31, 2020	
Credentials	HENRIETTA JENKINS	EVALUATOR FREEMAN, MARGARET L COMPLETE KEEP EMPLOYEES ON TRACK WITH THEIR GOALS	
Issued Property	HEAD ACCOUNTANT Emp # 286	DETAILS VIEW GOALS	
Expense Reports			
Employee Notifications	Recent Feedback		
Pay/Tax Information			
Performance Management	From: MARGARET FREEMAN Date: 04/15/2020	Multi-tasking	
Evaluations	Type: SUPERVISOR FEEDBACK	Details: Henrietta is very good at managing financial details for the increasing number of parks under our department purview.	
Goals		неллеца is ve у ускога напазуля mianciar verana ror ne increasing number or parka unker ou veparunen parvers.	
Feedback			
Analytics			
Training Opportunities	VIEW ALL		~~~~~

Click Evaluations from the Performance Management Home page to view evaluations by status—active or complete. You can search and filter these results, as well as select if former employee evaluations should be included in the list.

Evaluatio	on Status				Арр
elf Service					
f Service ACTIVE	COMPLETE				
C.	>				+ AD
Search	Q Include former em	ployees			
ns					
Name	Job Class	Evaluation Period	Туре	Status	
erty JOSE	PH, DOMINIC SUBSTITUTE DAY TO DAY ND	09/01/2019 - 12/31/2020	PERFORMANCE	APPROVED	DETAIL
		12/31/2020	KEVIEW		
ports					
ports					



Evaluations

ESS Evaluations accommodates the 360° evaluation functionality on one page for ease of viewing evaluations both about and by you.

tyler						8
	Evaluations					
ne	EVALUATIONS ABOUT ME	EVALUATIONS BY ME				_
oyee Self Service						+ ADD
ger Self Service its	Evaluations by my supervis	ors				
rents	Job	Evaluation period	Overall rating	Status		
ations	CITY MANAGER	9/1/2016 - 9/1/2017		APPROVED		VIEW AND ACKNOWLEDG
tials						
Property						
se Reports	Self evaluations					
yee Notifications	Job	Evaluation period		Overall rating		
x Information	CITY MANAGER	6/1/2018 - 12/31/2018		EXCELLENT	COPY	DETAILS
mance Management	CITY MANAGER	4/3/2017 - 4/3/2018			COPY	EDIT
luations						
lytics						
nal Information						

Use the Evaluations About Me tab to view evaluations others have completed about you. Use the Evaluations by Me tab to view evaluations you have completed about others. These will be grouped according to who performed them: your supervisors, your peers, your employees, and yourself.

To display details from a completed self-evaluation on a basic evaluation (supervisor to employee), the 360° evaluations must be of the same employee, evaluation type, and evaluation period.

To view more evaluations of any type, click Show History. If you have permission to enter an evaluation, use the Add New button to add a new evaluation.

	Evaluations					
		EVALUATIONS BY ME				
ee Self Service	· · · · · ·					+ ADD N
er Self Service	My evaluations of my employees					
						SHOW HISTOR
nts	Job	Evaluation period	Overall rating	Status	Employee	C
ations	DIRECTOR OF FINANCE	1/1/2019 - 3/29/2019		PENDING	BASTIEN, LINDSEY H	EDIT
Property	HEAD ACCOUNTANT	9/30/2019 - 11/29/2019		PENDING	JENKINS, HENRIETTA	EDIT
e Reports	SUPPORT SPECIALIST	11/1/2018 - 2/28/2019	EXCELLENT	APPROVED	JENKINS, TIMOTHY A	DETAILS
ee Notifications	PARKS AND REC SUPERVISOR	6/30/2019 - 11/30/2019	EXCELLENT	PENDING	JENKINS, SALLIE	EDIT
nance Management	TEACHER MIDDLE SCHOOL	1/1/2019 - 3/29/2019		PENDING	HARMON, SYLVIA	DETAILS
uations						
vtics						
al Information	Self evaluations					
n Transfer						SHOW HISTOR
ute Teaching	Job	Evaluation period	Overall rating	Status		-
и	CITY MANAGER	6/1/2018 - 12/31/2018	EXCELLENT	APPROVED	COPY	DETAILS



When you have multiple employees for whom to create evaluations, ESS displays an Add Evaluation dialog box that allows you to select the type of evaluation, the employee, and the job class of the correct individual.

To create an evaluation:

1. Select the name and job class from the available lists, if applicable.

If there is more than one individual to evaluate, ESS displays a list that allows you to select the name of the correct individual. If the individual has more than one job class, ESS displays a list of job classes as well.

To create a self-evaluation, select Myself from the For list in the Add Evaluation dialog box.

2. Click Add.

The program provides the evaluation form defined for that job class if one exists. Otherwise, it displays a default form.

- 3. Complete the fields, as appropriate, to define the evaluation. Use the Add or Edit options, if available, to add new data or edit existing data in a section.
- 4. At any point, click Save and Close to save the evaluation and return to it at a later time.
- 5. Click Submit to submit a completed evaluation.
- 6. If your organization has not configured workflow, submitted evaluations are automatically marked as approved. Otherwise, they are forwarded to a supervisor for approval. The Employee Evaluations page displays the status of all current employee evaluations. Click Edit for any evaluation that you have created, but that has not yet been approved, to edit that evaluation.

The option to Load Default Goals allows you to automatically copy goals from a previous evaluation. To enable this option, the employee must have a prior evaluation record. Additionally, within the Evaluation Settings program, the ESS Goals Copy Option must be populated with a selection that defines the goals to be copied.



	Performance Over	view		{
Home Employee Self Service Benefits Life Events Certifications Credentials Issued Property Expense Reports Employee Notifications	MARY MARTIN ACOMITIANT I Emp #11111	Performance Evaluation Evaluation Period Evaluation type overall rating Evaluator VIEW AND ACKNOWLEDGE	Home Employee Self Service Bendis Life Events Centifications Credential Expense Reports Employee Autifications Pay/Tax Information	MARTIN, MARY M - ACCOUNTANT I This evaluation is pending your acknowledgement. Personal Profile Evaluation Period Begin Biol Period Begin Biol Period Begin Biol Period Begin Deprofile Account Bioleter Evaluation Type Person Ganactor Exercise Evaluation Period End
ay/Tax Information	Recent Feedback		Performance Management	12/31/2019 Due Date
Evaluations	From: HENRIETTA JENKINS Date: 01/03/2020	Training Event	Goals Feedback Personal information	05/31/2020 Pot Online Yes
			Position Transfer Substitute Teaching Time Off	Goals Text Boals Complete additional Excel and Quickbooks training.

To review an evaluation, click View and Acknowledge to display a review page.

Use the Employee Comments and Acknowledgement box to enter your comments, and then click I Acknowledge This Evaluation to indicate that you have reviewed the evaluation, have had an opportunity to enter comments, and submit the acknowledgement.

Goals

If enabled by your organization, the Goals page provides a searchable overview of goals for the individual employee or for the manager and their employees and provides the status of the progress toward each goal. Click Add New to enter new goal details. Click View Details to view additional goal information, and to edit goals.

	Goal Progress				
ee Self Service					Not Started On Track Complet
er Self Service					
					+ ADD N
S	2020 V Search	Q			
ents					
ations	JENKINS, HENRIETTA	Not Started	On Track	Completed	VIEW DETAILS
tials		1	1	0	
Property	JOSEPH, DOMINIC	Not Started	On Track	Completed	VIEW DETAILS
e Reports	JUSEPH, DOMINIC	0	1	0	VIEW DETAILS
ee Notifications	0	Not Started	On Track	Completed	
ee nouncations	MARTIN, MARY M		0	0	VIEW DETAILS



Both employees and managers can edit goals, but employees cannot delete goals added by their manager.

🐝 tyler							
Employee Self Service	My Goal Progress				0 Not Started	1 _{On Track}	O Complete
lenefits							
ife Events							+ ADD N
Certifications	2020 💌 Search Q						
Credentials							
ssued Property							
xpense Reports	WRITE SUB GUIDE	Due Date 07/31/2020	Status On Trac	k			i
Employee Notifications	Type: Manager Assigned	07,5172020	on nuc	~ 			_
tyler						8	
me	JOSEPH, DOMINIC			0 Not Started	1 On Track	0 _{Completed}	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
ployee Self Service				Not Started		compieted	
nager Self Service						+ ADD NEW	
						I ADD NEW	
sks							
	2020 💌 Search Q						
nefits	2020 V Search Q						
nefits e Events	2020 V Search Q	Due Date	Status		Г		
sks nefits e Events rtifications edentials		Due Date 07/31/2020	Status On Track			/ • ·	

Feedback

If enabled by your organization, the Feedback page allows employees to view feedback from their managers.

styler					8
	Feedback				
Employee Self Service					
Benefits	2020 V Search	Q			
Life Events					
Certifications	From: HENRIETTA JENKINS Training Event	Date Added 01/03/2020	Type EMPLOYEE FEEDBACK	/	^
Credentials	Details				
Issued Property	Did a great job organizing the in-house financials training eve	nt!			
Expense Reports					
Employee Notifications				~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	~


When logged in as a manager, the Feedback page provides a view of feedback managers have provided for their employees as well as feedback on the manager provided by others in the organization. Managers can add employee feedback with the Add New button and can edit or delete feedback details using the edit or delete options on the dropdown panel for the individual employee.

🔅 tyler				8
	Feedback			
Home	FEEDBACK ABOUT MY EMPLOYEES FEED	BACK FOR ME		
Employee Self Service				+ ADD NEW
Manager Self Service	2020 V Search	Q		
Tasks				
Benefits	DOMINIC JOSEPH	Provided By	Туре	
Life Events	01/03/2020 - Training Event	HENRIETTA JENKINS	EMPLOYEE FEEDBACK	
Certifications				
Credentials	MARY MARTIN	Provided By	Туре	
Issued Property	01/03/2020 - Training Event	HENRIETTA JENKINS	EMPLOYEE FEEDBACK	
Expense Reports		_		
\sim		~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~		man

Feedback is separate from evaluations but can be associated with an evaluation or a specific competency. Only feedback that is created during the evaluation period can be connected to an evaluation.

Personal Information

When you click Personal Information on the menu, ESS displays your personal information as it is stored in Payroll Employee Master, and, if allowed by your organization, provides opportunities to update the information directly from ESS. Click the Edit link from each tab: General, Demographics, Contact, Dependents, Skills, and Tax Form Delivery to edit items in ESS. With the appropriate settings defined in Employee Administration, the Demographic Information and DOE Race information are available for update. Make any required changes and click Save.

styler		?	2
	Personal Information		
Home	General Demographics Contact Dependents Skills Tax form delivery		
Employee Self Service Manager Self Service Tasks Benefits Life Events Certifications Credentials Expense Reports Employee Notifications Pay/Tax Information Performance Evaluations Personal Information Add/View Changes Job Information	Image and the set of the status connects tatus conneconnects tatus connects tatus connects tatu		



For those sections that provide a Change or Add option, you can update or add additional information. When you do update or add information, the updates are transferred to the appropriate programs in Enterprise ERP.

🔆 tyler								θ
	Personal Infor	mation						
Home								
Employee Self Service	Employee: FREEMAN, MAR	GARET 🔻						
Manager Self Service	GENERAL	DEMOGRAPHICS	CONTACT	DEPENDENTS	BENEFICIARIES	SKILLS	TAX DELIVERY OPTIONS	
Tasks		Email address	Hire date					
Benefits		margaret.freeman@tylertech.com	10/3/2017					
Life Events		Primary location PARKS AND RECREATION DEPART	Service date 10/3/2017					
Certifications		PARKS AND RECREATION DEPART	10/3/2017					
Credentials								
Issued Property	Name							
Expense Reports	FREEMAN, MARGARET L							
Employee Notifications	Employee ID 297							
Pay/Tax Information	SSN							
Performance Management	349-03-4789							
Personal Information	Active status ACTIVE							
Add/View Changes	Personnel status							
Job Information	FULL TIME							
Position Transfer	FRIT							
Substitute Teaching	EDIT							
\sim	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	v~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	\sim	· m	man man	- ~

Use the Add/View Changes option on the menu to open the Profile Changes page to review pending or previous changes to your profile, or to initiate a new change.

styler				8
Home	Profile Changes Recent actions in process			
Employee Self Service Manager Self Service	≡			
Tasks				
Benefits	+			
Life Events	Add an action			
Certifications				
Credentials				
Issued Property				
Expense Reports				
Employee Notifications				
Pay/Tax Information				
Performance Management				
Personal Information	Historical profile changes			
Add/View Changes	Action	Request date	Posted date	
Job Information				
Position Transfer	Mart Martin			



When you select Add an Action, you can choose a category from the available action types by clicking on the action button.

styler			8
	Profile Changes		
Home	Recent actions in process		
Employee Self Service			
Manager Self Service			
Tasks	< Select category		
Benefits			
Life Events			
Certifications	, <u>,</u> , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		
Credentials	BENEFIT TRAINING EVALUATION OTHER CHANGE CHANGE		
Issued Property			
Expense Reports			
Employee Notifications	Historical profile changes		
Pay/Tax Information	Action Request		
Performance Management			
Personal Information	NAME CHANGE ADDRESS PHONE CHANGE NUMBER		
Add/View Changes	CHAGE		
Job Information			
Position Transfer			
have a second se	and have been a property of the second	~~~	~~

If an action requires supporting documentation, use the Choose File option in the Attachments group to navigate to the file to upload. If there are existing attachments, use the Remove option to delete them, as applicable.

Change items are supported by ESS templates that are maintained in the Action Entry Templates program in Enterprise ERP. This program defines the actions and fields that are available for update. When you complete a change action in ESS, the Employee Initiated check box in the Human Resources Personnel Actions Entry program is automatically selected.

Profile Changes Recent actions in process	
<	Submit action
BENEFIT ENROLLMENT (OPEN ENROLLMENT) Remember to make benefit selections during the Benefits Enrollment period! Action Effective Date* 04/17/2020 Attachments Choose File No file chosen	



Position Transfer

Position Transfer provides staff members a means of requesting a transfer to another position within the organization. The settings for the Position Transfer page are available according to the Enterprise ERP Position Transfer Processing programs.

If Position Transfer has not been set up for your organization, the program indicates that you may not submit requests.

			1	4
		Request position transfer		
Home	^	Position transfers must be approved by your unit manager prior to submitting requests.		
Employee Self Service	1	This employee may not submit transfer requests.		
Manager Self Service				
Benefits	~			

If Position Transfer is set up for your organization, the program provides a series of screens of the steps required to complete the process.

tyler schroteges			1	-
Home	~	Request position transfer		
Employee Self Service	1	Please enter your position transfer request below. Requests may be added through 12/31/17.		
Manager Self Service		● Voluntary ◯ Involuntary		
Benefits				
Certifications				
Credentials		Continue		
Expense Reports				

Substitute Teaching

Substitute Teaching displays days worked by a substitute teacher. The dates worked, number of days/hours worked, who they substituted for, where they substituted, and a link to the check in which they were paid for those days are displayed. Click Calendar to view the days worked in a calendar view.



The substitute time worked must be entered in Time Entry and linked to the teacher who is absent in order for this data to display in ESS.

styler									2
		Substi	itute Teaching						
Home	^	Employee:	SULLIVAN, NANCY	✓ Year: 2017 ✓					
Employee Self Service		From	То	Hours Worked	For	Pay Code	School	Check Date	
Manager Self Service		1/30/2017	1/30/2017	1.183	Not Found	S200	CENTRAL	<u>2/3/2017</u>	
Benefits									
Certifications									
Credentials									
Expense Reports									
Pay/Tax Information	~								
				©2017 Tyle	er Technologies, Inc.				

Time Off

The Time Off section displays a summary of your vacation, sick, and personal time off. Initially, the page displays the time off that you have taken. For more details on a specific time-off type, click the link for that time-off type to view the Earned/Used History page.

Requesting Time Off

To request time-off:

- 1. Click the link for the type of time-off to request (vacation, sick, and so on).
- 2. Highlight the dates for which you are requesting time off and then click Continue.

ome			-				'im t Dat			f	f									
mployee Self Service										at v	/01	ı w	oul	d lik	e 1	o t	ake	e of	ff.	(Click again to deselect).
Manager Self Service										,										, 3
Benefits	<.	< PI	REV	ιου	s													NE	хт	[>>
.ife Events			Maj T	202	0				Ju	ne 20	020					Jul	y 20	20	-	6
Certifications	3	M		vv		1 2		1	2	3	4		6	3	IVI		1		г 3	4
simoutono	3	4		6				-		10					_	7				
redentials						5 16 2 23		15 22								14 21				
sued Property						9 30		29								28				
vaanaa Daparta	31																			
Expense Reports																				
Employee Notifications	G	ON	TIN	UE																



3. Select the type of time-off you are requesting.

The program displays only the types of time-off that are available. For example, if you only have vacation time available, the program only displays the vacation option; if you have vacation time and personal time available, the program displays an option for each.

styler			8
Home	Request Time Off Step 2 of 4: Select Type		
Employee Self Service	Select the type of time off you would like to take from which	job	
Manager Self Service Benefits	Туре	Currently Available	Projected Available*
Life Events	VACATION SICK	120.00 32.00	120.00
Certifications		32.00	32.00
Credentials			
Issued Property	CONTINUE BACK		
Expense Reports			
Employee Notifications	*Estimated available amount by 7/8/2020.		
Prouter Marmation	have been a second and the second sec		mon

4. Click Continue.

You can edit the time off request to partial days by changing the number of hours on the necessary requested dates.

styler											
	Request Time Off	2									
Home	Step 3 of 4: Partial Day Requests										
Employee Self Service	If you are requesting any partial days, edit time as necessary.	2									
Manager Self Service	You have selected the following dates (Change Dates)	2									
Benefits		~~~									
Life Events	7/3/2020: 8.00 Hours 7/6/2020: 8.00 Hours	5									
Certifications	7/7/2020: 8.00 Hours 7/8/2020: 8.00 Hours	Ś									
Credentials		~									
Issued Property	CONTINUE BACK	Ş									
Expense Reports		5									
Soulovee Notifi tions											



Enter any additional information regarding the request. Verify that you have entered your request correctly. If necessary, change the numbers of hours requested. Click Make Request.

styler		
	Request Time O	
Home	Step 4 of 4: Additional Inform	nation
Employee Self Service	Verify the time you are taking	g and enter additional comments for this request.
Manager Self Service	Job	~
Benefits	Request Type	لمرم VACATION
	Days Requested	7/3,7/6,7/7,7/8
Life Events	Total Time Requested	32.00 Hour(s) change
Certifications		
Credentials	Comment: (optional)	
Issued Property	Reason	[optional]
Expense Reports		
Employee Notifications	MAKE REQUEST CANCEL	

The program processes the request, generates an email to your supervisor indicating that approval is required, and displays the My Requests page with your most recent request included.

🤸 tyler							B 0
	My Requests						
Home							CALENDAR VIEW
Employee Self Service							
Manager Self Service				Earned		Projected Earned arough 4/16/2020	Projected Available* through 4/16/2020
Benefits	VACATION (H)			150.00		150.00	88.00
Life Events	SICK (H)			40.00		40.00	32.00
Certifications	PERSONAL (D)			50.00		50.00	50.00
Ceruncations	BEREAVE (D) ALL OR NOT (D)			24.00		24.00 4.00	24.00
Credentials	ALL OK HOT (D)			268.00		268.00	198.00
Issued Property							
Expense Reports	Dates Requested	Amount	Туре	Status	Reason	Comments	Options
	7/6/2020 - 7/8/2020	24 hours	VACATION	1			CANCEL
Employee Notifications	//0/2020 - //8/2020	24 hours	VAGATION	In progress			ADD TO CALENDAR
Pay/Tax Information							
Performance Management	7/3/2020	8 hours	VACATION	In progress			CANCEL
-							ADD TO CALENDAR
Personal Information	3/6/2017 - 3/24/2017	8 hours	SICK	Taken	ACCRUAL USED	03/06/17 - 03/24/17	
Position Transfer	2/1/2017	30 hours	VACATION	Taken	INJURY	SICK BANK ENROLLMENT	
Time Off	H=Hours; D=Days.						
My Requests	*Available amount after any o	outstanding requests (approve	d or pending approval)				
			6	2020 Tyler Technologies, Inc.			

Click the Calendar View option to view your current time-off in a calendar format. On the Time Off Calendar page, click Return to Previous View to return to the My Requests page.



Time Entry

Time Entry allows you to enter time applicable to your regular work schedule. When you select Enter Time in the Time Entry group, the program displays those exception items for which you can enter time. This includes accrual time, such as sick or vacation time.

To complete a time sheet, select the job for which you are entering time and enter hours in the grid. To enter hours and additional details, select a box in the grid and complete the fields configured by your organization, for example, General Ledger Account or Notes. Enter time worked, sick time, vacation time, and so on, directly from the Time Entry page.

styler										8 8
Home Employee Self Service	Enter time HEAD ACCOUNTANT V HEAD ACCOUNTANT PARKS & REC V	Adding 39.5 from 4	l/13/2020 to	4/17/2020	COPY F	OM PREVIO	DUS WEEK	SAVE F	OR LATER	SUBMIT
Manager Self Service Tasks Benefits	MAR 2020 PRIOR WEEK	MAY 2020 NEXT WEEK	Sunday 4/12	Monday 4/13	Tuesday 4/14	Wednesday 4/15	Thursday 4/16	riday 4/17	teruntey 4/18	Weekly Total
Life Events Certifications	111 - ANNUAL SALARY			8	7.5	8	8	8		39.5
Credentials Issued Property Expense Reports	Hours Project ledger account General ledger account Reason Notes		ADD LINE IT	ЕМ						
Employee Notifications Pay/Tax Information	300 - VACATION TIME									
Performance Management Personal Information	400 - SICK TIME									
Position Transfer Substitute Teaching	TOTAL	0		8	7.5	8	8	8		39.5

Time Entry performs time entry rule verification based on the Rules Validation Method setting in the Munis Payroll Control Settings program. If this is set to Validate Timesheet on Submission, the time validation states change when the time sheet is submitted. If it is set to Validate Timesheet on Entry, validation states change when the primary time text box value changes, when the detail lines change, and when the time sheet is submitted.

Click Copy from Previous Week to copy the time sheet entered for the previous week. The function copies any line entries that you have used to specify notes, general ledger accounts, or project accounts.

Click Save for Later to save the time sheet for completion at a later time. Click Submit to submit a completed time sheet. If the Require Acknowledgement for Time Entry Records setting is enabled in Employee Administration, the program provides a certification acknowledgement for the time entered. When you submit a completed time sheet, the program displays a confirmation page.

If your organization has not configured workflow, time sheet entries are automatically approved. Otherwise, time sheets require the approval of a supervisor.



If you are a supervisor or other employee with permissions to verify time sheets, the Pending Timesheets page displays all pending time sheets. The page displays the total hours submitted for individual time sheets.

styler			E .	θ
Home	Pending Timesheets A Maureen Elfring will be forwarding time entry w	rorkflow to you starting on		
Employee Self Service	BASTIEN, LINDSEY H	8.00		
Manager Self Service	DIRECTOR OF FINANCE	8.00	APPROVE DETAILS	
Tasks	HARMON, SYLVIA	40.00		
Benefits	TEACHER MIDDLE SCHOOL	40.00	APPROVE DETAILS	
Life Events	I JACOBS, JASON	40.00	2/20/2017 - 2/24/2017	
Life Lifento	☑ JENKINS, HENRIETTA	39.50		
Certifications	JENKINS, SALLIE	0		
Credentials	JENKINS, TIMOTHY A	0		
Issued Property	APPROVE AND SUBMIT ALL PENDING TIME SHO	OWN ABOVE		
Expense Reports				
	©2	020 Tyler Technologies, Inc.		

Click Approve to approve the timesheet; click Details to review and approve individual time.

Click Mark This Week as Approved to approve the entire time sheet.

🤸 tyler									ĺ	8
Home Employee Self Service	Approve time for BASTIEN, LINDSEY H DIRECTOR OF FINANCE DIR	ECTOF				MARK THIS	WEEK AS AF	PROVED	EDIT	SUBMIT
Manager Self Service Tasks	MAY 2020 AUG 2020 PRIOR WEEK NEXT WEEK	6/28	thanday 6/29	¹ uesday 6/30	Theorematics 7/1	truster 7/2	**ae 7/3	senurtey 7/4	Weekly Submitted	Weekly Approved
Benefits Life Events	ANNUAL SALARY									
Certifications Credentials	STRAIGHT TIME OVERTIME									
Issued Property Expense Reports	VACATION TIME						8		8	
Employee Notifications Pay/Tax Information	VACATION TIME OFF REQUEST									
Performance Management Personal Information	SICK TIME									
Position Transfer Substitute Teaching	TOTAL						8		8	
maall	Man Martin Ma			2	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	mont	m	w	~~~~~	



To respond to an individual item on the time sheet, click the item to display workflow options.

styler_									8
Home Employee Self Service	Edit time for JENKINS, HENRIETTA HEAD ACCOUNTANT					COPY FR	OM PREVIO	US WEEK	SUBMIT
Manager Self Service Tasks	MAR 2020 PRIOR WEEK NEXT WEEK	sonar 4/12	Monthly 4/13	Tuesday 4/14	4/15	Thursday 4/16	 4/17	source 4/18	Weekly Total
Benefits Life Events Certifications	111 - ANNUAL SALARY		8	7.5	8	8	8		39.5
Credentials Issued Property Expense Reports	C Hours 7.5 General ledger account 1000-5110- EDIT DELETE Hours Project ledger account General ledger account Reason Notes								
Employee Notifications Pay/Tax Information Performance Management	300 - VACATION TIME								
Personal Information Position Transfer	400 - SICK TIME								
Substitute Teaching Time Off	TOTAL		8	7.5	8	8	8		39.5
Time Entry		~~~	~~~			~~^	\sim	~~~	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

If you select the Hold and Reject options, ESS requires an entry in the Comments box. Once you have responded to all or part of the time sheet, click Submit.

Entering Time for an Employee

To enter a time sheet for an employee, expand the employee's entry on the Pending Timesheets list and then click Details.

On the employee's Time Entry page, click Edit to enter or update time.

🔆 tyler										8
Home	Edit time for JOSEPH, DOMINIC ACCOUNTANT II		Adding 2	7.0 from 4/	13/2020 to	4/17/2020	COPY FF	ROM PREVI	DUS WEEK	SUBMIT
Employee Self Service Manager Self Service Tasks	MAR 2020 PRIOR WEEK NEXT V	_	sunday 4/12	Monday 4/13	Tuesday 4/14	Wednesday 4/15	Thursday 4/16	Frday 4/17	Saturday 4/18	Weekly Total
Benefits Life Events Certifications	111 - ANNUAL SALARY			8.0	4	4	7	4		27
Credentials Issued Property										
Expense Reports Employee Notifications Pay/Tax Information	TOTAL			8	4	4	7	4		27
		~~~		$\sim \sim$	~~~~	$\sim$	$\sim \sim$	$\sim$	m	nm

Use the Prior Week, Next Week, and month links to navigate. You can select a week for which the employee has already entered a time sheet and edit it. Click Copy from Previous Week to copy the time sheet from the previous week or click Submit to complete. In the event of a supervisor's absence, the Payroll ESS Additional Supervisors program can be used to grant temporary administrative access to ESS to approve and enter time sheets.

For the time sheets to be accepted into the Payroll Time Entry program, the payroll for time entry must have been started and be the active payroll selected in the Payroll Start and Status program.



# **Punch-In/Punch-Out**

The Punch In/Punch Out option tracks your hours worked by allowing you to punch in at the beginning of a shift and punch out at the end. For this option to be enabled, the ESS Time Entry option must be set to P-Punch In/Out within the Payroll Job Class Master program and Position Control, if used by your organization.

styler,	
Home Employee Self Service Benefits	Punch In Comment
Life Events Punch In Time Off	

When this option is enabled, it replaces the Time Entry option on the ESS Home page.

Use the Comment box to provide brief explanations for work interruptions or other circumstances. Comments are optional. Click Punch In to punch the time clock. The program displays your punch-in information and the ESS menu option changes to Punch Out.

At the end of your shift, click Punch Out on the Employee Self Service menu. The program displays the Punch Out page, which indicates the time that you punched in (rounded up to the nearest guarter hour) and the Comment box.

styler tyler		θ
Home	Punch Out You punched in at 12:52:10 PM. It was recorded as 12:45 PM.	
Employee Self Service Benefits	Comment	
Life Events Certifications	PUNCH OUT	
Credentials		
Issued Property		



If necessary, use the Comment box to provide brief explanations for work interruptions or other circumstances. Click Punch Out.

The ESS main menu now displays the Punch In option. If you return to the Punch In page later in the day, ESS displays any time you previously entered for the day.

			2	4
Home	~	Punch In		
Employee Self Service		Previous shifts from today 1:15 PM - 1:15 PM		
Manager Self Service Benefits Certifications		Comment Punch in	]	

# **Training Opportunities**

Training Opportunities allows you to view and enroll in available training, as well as view and cancel training for which you are currently enrolled.

The Training Opportunities default page includes all training that is available to you. Training may be restricted to locations, job classes, or groups; in this case, only the tabs for which you have permissions display on the page. Use the Sort and Search fields to narrow the available courses. You can filter the training courses by training types, areas, and prerequisites.

If you are a supervisor, you can review the Training Opportunities page for employees who report to you, and you can complete or cancel training course enrollments for the employees. Select the employee's name from the Employee list. Click Employee Training to view a specific employee's scheduled training or training history.

🤝 tyler					B 0
Life Events	Training Opportun	ities			
Certifications	Employee: FREEMAN, MARGARET	•		COURSES CALENDAR	MY TRAINING EMPLOYEE TRAINING
Credentials					
Issued Property	Sort	Description	Date	Time	
Expense Reports	Description V	MARINE SAFETY COURSE FOR PARKS MANAGMEMENT	7/31/2020	1:30 PM	DETAILS / ENROLL
Employee Notifications	Search	SWIMMING ABILITY: SAFETY PRECAUTIONS		1.50 FM	DETAILS / ENROLL
Pay/Tax Information	Description	SEXUAL HARASSMENT IN THE WORKPLACE	7/15/2020 to 11/30/2047	2:15 PM	DETAILS**
Performance Management	GO				
Personal Information	Occurring before	** You have not met all of the prerequisites for this training.			
Position Transfer	GO				
Substitute Teaching	Course Locations	×			
Time Off	Types	×			
Time Entry	Area	<b>V</b>			
Training Opportunities	Prerequisites	~			
Courses Calendar					
My Training					
My Points					
Employee Training					
		©2020 Tyler Technologies, Inc	2.		



If you are enrolled in a course, the Details link directs you to the Training Details page. Otherwise, click Details/Enroll to display the Training Details page for that course. Use this page to view additional details and to enroll.

When the enrollment is complete, the page refreshes to confirm the enrollment and to provide the Add to Calendar and Cancel Enrollment options. The Other Offerings for this Course group provides access to other sessions of the same course if available.

styler		8
Home	Training Details	
Employee Self Service	Your request for this training was approved.	
Benefits Life Events	Course MARINE SAFETY COURSE FOR PARKS MANAGMEMENT BOAT LAUNCH 10 SALTER PATH PORTLAND, ME 04101	
Certifications Credentials	Date 7/31/2020	
Issued Property	Time 1:30 PM	
Expense Reports Employee Notifications	Instructor JAMES KELLY	
Pay/Tax Information	Contact margaret.freeman@tylertech.com	
Performance Management Personal Information	Accredited hours 0.50	
Position Transfer	Accredited points 0.0000	
Substitute Teaching Time Entry	Enrollment deadline 7/31/2020	
Training Opportunities		
Courses Calendar	CANCEL ENROLLMENT ADD TO CALENDAR	
My Training	SWIMMING ABILITY SAFETY PRECAUTIONS	
My Points Service Requests		
Career Planning	Other offerings for this course No other offerings were found for this course.	
	©2020 Tyler Technologies, Inc.	



#### **Courses Calendar**

The Course Calendar provides a calendar view of available training courses. You can filter the display by year and by month.

🔅 tyler																															Ê	e
	Trainin	g Co	our	ses	s Ca	alen	ndai	r																								
lome																																
Employee Self Service	Year 2020	* N	Ionth	All		-	FILTER																									
Benefits		_																														
ife Events	July 2020	4	2	2		5	4	7		0	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	31
Certifications	MARINE			~		3	U	,	•		10			13		15	10		10		20	21		2.5	24	23	20		20	13	30	31
	SAFETY COURSE FOR																															
edentials	PARKS																															
sued Property	MANAGMEM ENT																															
pense Reports	SEXUAL																															
nployee Notifications	HARASSMEN T IN THE																															
y/Tax Information	WORKPLACE																															
rformance Management	August 2020	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	31
	SEXUAL																															
rsonal Information	HARASSMEN T IN THE																															
sition Transfer	WORKPLACE																															
bstitute Teaching	September																															
me Entry	2020	1	2	3	4	5	6	7		9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	
aining Opportunities	SEXUAL HARASSMEN T IN THE																															
Courses Calendar	WORKPLACE																															
My Training	October																															
	2020	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13	14	15	16	17	18	19	20	21	22	23	24	25	26	27	28	29	30	31
My Points	SEXUAL HARASSMEN																															
ervice Requests	T IN THE																															
rear Planning	WORKPLACE																															

#### My Training

My Training displays a list of courses for which you are currently enrolled. For each course, the Details and Cancel options are available. If you have completed other courses, the Training History group provides this information.

🤸 tyler					B
	My Training				
Home					HIDE TRAINING HISTORY
Employee Self Service					
Manager Self Service	Scheduled Description	Dates	Time		
Benefits	TRAINING ON THE PARKS/REC COMPUTER SYSTEMS	7/15/2021 - 7/15/2021	8:30 AM	DETAILS CANCEL	
Life Events Certifications	This course is in conflict with another course for which you are scheduled.				
Credentials	Training History				
Issued Property	No Training History found for the selected employee.				
Expense Reports	RETURN TO TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES				
Employee Notifications	RETURN TO TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES				
an us man		man man	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~		$\sim$



#### **My Points**

My Points is available in the Training Opportunities group on the ESS menu if your organization uses points to track training courses for professional development. Select this option to display the My Training Points page.

styler								8
Home	My Trainin	g Points						
Employee Self Service	This page displays the	total number of points you	u have earned through tra	aining.				
Manager Self Service	PROFESS	IONAL DEVELOPMENT			Earned 2.0000	Expended 0.0000	Balance 2.000	00
Benefits	Event Date	Earned	Expended	Course				
Life Events	3/1/2017	1.0000	0.0000	ACC1 - ACCOUNTING REFRESHER 3/17/2017 8:15 AM				
Certifications	3/1/2017	1.0000	0.0000	ACC1 - ACCOUNTING REFRESHER 3/17/2017 8:15 AM				
Credentials						WINDOW CONTRACTOR OF STREET		
Training Opportunities								
Courses Calendar								
My Training								
My Points								
				©2020 Tyler Technologies, Inc.				

The My Training Points page displays previously completed courses organized by points type. In addition, it displays points earned, points expended, and the resulting points balance.

### **Service Requests**

Service Requests allows employees to enter an internal service request. For example, a school teacher might use the request to report a light out in their classroom or a leaky water fountain. The employee service requests flow to the EAM Asset Maintenance program to be approved and corrected with a work order.

styler		2	8
Home Employee Self Service Manager Self Service Benefits Life Events Certifications Credentials Issued Property Expense Reports Employee Notifications Pay/Tax Information Training Opportunities Service Requests Add a Service Request	Add a Service Request Category Facility Maintenance Comments Someone painted the window shutt Someone p		
	©2020 Tyler Technologies, Inc.		



Click Add a Service Request and provide the required information. The categories in the Category list are established on the Request Types screen of the Citizen Request Settings program. Complete the additional fields relating to the request and click Submit.

🔆 tyler			<b>B O</b>
Home	My Service Requests		+ ADD NEW
Employee Self Service	ID	ID	
Manager Self Service	10	12	
Benefits	Date requested 4/12/2019	Date requested 4/15/2020	
Life Events	Category	Category	
Certifications	Facility Maintenance	Facility Maintenance	
Credentials	Comment	Comment	
Issued Property	The closet door in my office is squeaking.	Someone painted the window shut!	
Expense Reports			
Training Opportunities			
Service Requests			
Add a Service Request			
Career Planning			
Employment Opportunities			
		©2020 Tyle	er Technologies, Inc.

# **Training (Guest)**

Training may be made available to individuals who are not employees of your organization. While it is considered a part of ESS, the Training option displays on the ESS Home page and is accessible without a username and password. Guests cannot enroll in a course through ESS; they must email the course contact. The availability of courses is maintained in the Enterprise ERP Training Courses program.

styler tyler				LOG IN
Home	All training By location Search			
Employment Opportunities Training	Description MARINE SAFETY COURSE FOR PARKS MANAGMEMENT SWIMMING ABILITY: SAFETY PRECAUTIONS	Date 7/31/2020	<b>Time</b> 1:30 PM	Action Contact
	©2020 Tyler	Technologies, Inc.		



### **Career Planning**

Career Planning provides tools to plan your career development. If your position or job class is part of a career track with employer-specified requirements, you can view other jobs in your track and the descriptions and requirements for those jobs on the Career Planning page. The Career Planning page draws information from the Human Resources Succession/Career Planning Status programs.

styler				•
Home Employee Self Service	Career Planning	EXPLORE JOBS		
Benefits Life Events	ACCOUNTING			
Certifications Credentials				
Issued Property Expense Reports	ACCOUNTANT		,	
Employee Notifications Pay/Tax Information	HEAD ACCOUNTANT			
Performance Management Personal Information				
Career Planning Employment Opportunities				

The program displays a Notification icon beside current job openings in your career track. Your current position is starred. You can also view whether you have met employer-established steps for career progression, such as training, certification, skills, or educational requirements, by employee-specified due dates. If your certifications have expired, or a missing certification "grace" period has been generated though the Employee Certifications program, the notification displays on the page. Once the training course is completed and certification is earned, the page reflects the updated certification standing.



styler_							
Home Employee Self Service Benefits	Career Planning CAREER PLANNINO Search Q = FILTER						
Life Events Certifications Credentials	JOBS ACCOUNTANT 5		ACCOUNTANT I Accounting professional. Manage day-to-day degree required.	organizational accounting duties. Full-time. Bachelor's			
Issued Property Expense Reports Employee Notifications	ACCOUNTANT I	¢	Positions available	^			
Pay/Tax Information Performance Management Personal Information	ACCOUNTANT III	#	Positions Available ACCOUNTING Code: 3-2	Special Requirements/Notes			
Position Transfer Substitute Teaching Time Off	ACCOUNTANT III ADVISOR CHESS CLUB	Type: EXTERNAL Loadton: FINANCE DEPARTMENT Grade: ACCOUNTANT 1 Grade: ACCOUNTANT 1 Grade: NON UNION					
Time Entry Training Opportunities Service Requests	ADVISOR KEY CLUB ADVISOR NATIONAL HONOR SOCIETY		Job Family: ADMINISTRATION Job Class: ACCOUNTANT I Posting Start: 01/10/2017 Posting End: 01/01/9999				
Career Planning Employment Opportunities	ANNUITANT		SALARY RANGE: \$.00-\$54,025.00				
	ASST COACH BASEBALL	©2020 Tyle	r Technologies, Inc.				

Search by job title to see if you are on track to meet your career goals.

# **Employment Opportunities**

Employment Opportunities is the Enterprise ERP Self Service interface for Recruiting. It is considered a part of ESS; however, the Employment Opportunities option displays on the Self Service Home page and is accessible without a username and password.

🤝 tyler					
	Employment	Opportunities			
Home		in our organization! Please select a job and complete the application.			
Employment Opportunities	Thank you for your interest	in our organization mease select a job and complete the application.			
Job Descriptions				RSS REGISTER FOR EMAIL ALERTS	LOG IN
Training	Sort	Positions Available	Special Requirements/Notes		
Tuning	None Selected 💌	1			
	Search Description/Notes	Position: 17701 (PARK SUPERVISOR) Code: 1-1	Description: Parks and Recreation		
	Minimum salary	Type: INTERNAL & EXTERNAL Location: PARKS AND RECREATION DEPART Group: EXECUTIVES Job Family: ADMINISTRATION			
	Posted after	Job Class: PARKS AND REC SUPERVISOR Posting Start: 05/01/2015			
	GO	Posting End: 12/31/2999			
	Location	F 💟 🛅 <	1		
	Job Family ~				
	Job Class ~	COPY JOB DETAIL LINK			
	Group ~	1 Code: 1-2 Type: INTERNAL & EXTERNAL	Description: Parks and Recreation		
		Location: PARKS AND RECREATION DEPART			
		Group: EXECUTIVES			
		Job Family: ADMINISTRATION			
		Job Class: PARKS AND REC SUPERVISOR			
		Posting Start: 05/01/2015			
		Posting End: 12/31/2999			
			©2020 Tyler Technologies, Inc.		

Employment Opportunities provides job openings for your organization. Using this feature, job applicants can view available jobs and apply for one or more jobs directly from the Employment Opportunities page. Your organization builds job applications using the Self Service Application program within Enterprise ERP Recruiting and posts them to ESS through the Job Openings program.



When applicants register for an account, the program stores their applicant information in the Munis database. Returning applicants do not have to re-enter information each time they apply for a job; however, they can update their applicant information to tailor it to a specific job or to add updated information.

In addition to applying for positions, applicants can request to receive regular updates for job openings according to job categories, and they can share the job openings to social media, using direct links from the posting. Use the Share icon to access direct links to the specific job posting details and the job application that you can link to social media and job posting boards. If applicants use the Internet Rich Site Summary (RSS) application, they can click RSS to subscribe to an RSS feed for employment opportunities, or they can click Register for Email Alerts to get automatic updates regarding opportunities.

The Employment Opportunities page displays all Positions Available as the default view. The Sort and Search fields allow applicants to sort the various positions by Job Description, Location, Job Family, Job Class, Group, Salary, Posting Start Date, and Posting Type and the ability to search by Description/Notes, Minimum Salary, and Posted After date within the sort.





Applicants can further refine their search for positions within the Sort and Search returns by use of the drop down menus for Location, Job Family, Job Class, and Group. Each menu displays the available positions that meet the search criteria. Selecting the check box beside the desired option under the Location, Job Family, Job Class, or Group additionally filters the positions.

If the Display Job Descriptions Page setting is enabled for Employee Opportunities in Employee Self Service Administration, and job descriptions are enabled in Payroll Job Class Master or Position Control, the Job Descriptions page provides applicants the option to view a detailed job description, either as plain text or as an attachment. The descriptions are arranged on tabs; you can view all jobs, jobs by location, or jobs by group/BU.

styler				
	ALL JOBS	BY LOCATION	BY GROUP	
Home	ACCOUNTANT II			Hide description
Employment Opportunities	The Accountant II position provides advanced reporting to city financial management.			<u>inde desemption</u>
Job Descriptions	PARKS AND REC SUPERVISOR			Description
Training				
m mm			~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

New applicants who want to receive notifications of future job opportunities can use the Register for Email Alerts option on the main page to submit an interest card. Required fields are marked with a red asterisk.

styler tyler	
	Future job opportunities
Home	Select the job categories in which you are interested. You will be alerted via email when new job opportunities arise.
Employment Opportunities	ADMINISTRATION CLERICAL NON UNIFORMED SUPPORT STAFF
Training	TEACHER TEST UNIFORMED
	First name
	Last name *
	Middle initial
	Address 1
	Address 2
	City
	State abbreviation
	Zip code
	Country
	Phone
	Email *
	SUBMIT
	©2020 Tyler Technologies, Inc.



### **New Applicants**

When potential job applicants first access the Employment Opportunities page, they can create an applicant log-in that allows them to actively participate in the employment process for your organization.

🤸 tyler			
Home Employment Opportunities		Opportunities n our organization! Please select a job	
Job Descriptions			RSS REGISTER FOR EMAIL ALERTS LOG IN
Training	Sort None Selected V	Positions Available	Special Requirements/Notes
	Home Min Employment Opportuni	Welcome to our Employment	Opportunities page. Applicant Login
	Poss Loc		If you previously created an account using a PIN number, click the PIN account migration button to set up a new user name and password for your account before logging in.
	Job Job Gro		Please use your login information to Sign In and view your application and/or apply for new jobs. If you are new to our site, please click the Sign Up button below to get started.
	_		Password Ecropt your Destinante? Ecropt your Password?
			Already an employee? Log IN
			02021 Tyler Technologies, Inc.

Applicants who had previously created an account using a PIN number can click PIN Account Migration to set up a new username and password to log in to their existing account.

New applicants click the Sign Up button to create a new account to register with your organization. Returning applicants enter their username and password and click Sign In to access their existing account.

If the applicant is already an employee of the organization, the Log In option will prompt them for their employee username and password to create an applicant account.

Returning applicants who have forgotten their username or password can use the Forgot Your Username? or Forgot Your Password? links to generate a username reminder or password hint sent to the email address associated with the account.



First time applicants will create a username and password that they will use to access their account. An email containing the account username will be sent to the email address entered on the account.

🤣 tyler	
Home	Create Applicant
Employment Opportunities	Enter Account Details Username
	First Name Last Name
	Password Confirm Password
	Email Address Confirm Email
	Enter these validation numbers into the box below them
	CREATE ACCOUNT
	©2021 Tyler Technologies, Inc. Help/Feedback

The new applicant will be prompted to create security questions, which can be used to verify the account in the case of an account password reset.

s tyler	
ome	Create Applicant
ployment Opportunities	Choose Security Questions
	Your account has been created. Security questions are a way for you to recover your password if you ever forget it. Please choose three security questions and answers below to finish setting up your applicant account. Only letters, numbers, and spaces are allowed in your answer.
	Security Question #1 What is the name of the street you grew up on?
	Answer Elm
	Security Question #2 What is the make of your first vehicle?
	Answer Chevrolet
	Security Question #3 What is the name of your first pet?
	Answer Scout
	CREATE SECURITY QUESTIONS



After the questions are created successfully, the applicant will be asked to verify their email address by entering a verification code sent to the email address they provide. Applicants can also select to receive a password reset code by email.

styler,	
Home	Create Applicant
Employment Opportunities Training	Archibald, please verify your email address.
	Email Verification is the last step. You must verify your email address to continue. We sent a verification code to: archibald@mailinator.com. You may need to wait a few moments to receive the email. Please enter your verification code in the box below.

Once registered, potential applicants can manage applications for available positions.

### **Returning Applicants**

On the Employment Opportunities main page, registered applicants click Log In to display the Applicant Login page.

If an applicant has forgotten their password, they can use the Forgot Your Password? link to access the Applicant Password Reset screen. The email text for PIN hints is established in the Enterprise ERP Recruiting Settings program and depending upon an organization's requirements, may include the actual PIN.

🤣 tyler	
Home Employment Opportunities Training	Applicant Password Reset           security Questions Password Reset         EMAIL PASSWORD RESET         RETURN TO APPLICANT LOGIN           Security Questions Password Reset         Utername         Utername
	GET SECURITY QUESTIONS
	©2019 Tyler Technologies, Inc.

If an applicant has previously applied for a position, the details are stored in an applicant profile. The profile includes personal information, contact information, and availability and requirements details.



After logging in, registered applicants can access three additional menu options under Employment Opportunities: My Profile, Required Actions, Unfinished Applications, and Job Descriptions.

	Employme	nt Opportunities			
e		rest in our organization! Please select a job and complete the application.			
loyment Opportunities				RSS	REGISTER FOR EMAIL ALER
y Profile					
equired Actions	Sort	Positions Available	Special Requirements/Notes		
nfinished Applications	None Selected 💌	ACCOUNTING			
b Descriptions	Search	Code: 3-2			
	Description/Notes	Type: EXTERNAL			
		Location: FINANCE DEPARTMENT			
	Minimum salary	Grade: ACCOUNTANT 1			
		Group: NON UNION			
	Posted after	Job Family: ADMINISTRATION Job Class: ACCOUNTANT I			
		Posting Start: 01/10/2017			
	GO	Posting End: 01/01/9999			
	GO	SALARY RANGE: \$.00-\$54,025.00			
		Submission Status: APPLIED			
	Location	REAPPLY WITHDRAW			
	Job Family	×			
	Job Class	·			
	Group	*			
		1 Position: 17701 (PARK SUPERVISOR)	Description: Parks and Recreation		
		Code: 1-1			
		Type: INTERNAL & EXTERNAL			
		Location: PARKS AND RECREATION DEPART			
		Group: EXECUTIVES			
		Job Family: ADMINISTRATION			
		Job Class: PARKS AND REC SUPERVISOR			
		Posting Start: 05/01/2015			
		Posting End: 12/31/2999			
		APPLY			

If a returning applicant decides that they no longer wish to apply for a position, they can remove their application from consideration by clicking the Withdraw link associated with the position for which they applied. If the applicant chooses to withdraw an application, they can reapply for the position using the Reapply link.

ome	Employmen	t Opportunities
nployment Opportunities	Thank you for your intere	st in our organization! Please select a job and complete the application
My Profile		
Required Actions	Sort	Positions Available
Unfinished Applications	None Selected 💌	
Job Descriptions	Search	ACCOUNTING Code: 3-2
ob beschptions	Description/Notes	Type: EXTERNAL
		Location: FINANCE DEPARTMENT
	Minimum salary	Grade: ACCOUNTANT 1
	Ivinini run salary	Group: NON UNION
		Job Family: ADMINISTRATION
	Posted after	Job Class: ACCOUNTANT I
		Posting Start: 01/10/2017
	GO	Posting End: 01/01/9999
	GO	SALARY RANGE: \$.00-\$54,025.00
		Submission Status: APPLIED
	Location	* REAPPLY WITHDRAW
	Job Family	~
	SODTUNNIY	- F 🔽 in <



The My Profile page displays the saved Applicant Profile information. In the General Information section, there are multiple options for updating application information, such as work history, education, or references. For each section of the profile (Personal Information, Telephone, Contact Information, and Availability and Requirements), applicants click Edit or Delete to change or remove existing details, and click Add New to provide new details. In addition to maintaining personal information, the Applicant Profile provides options for uploading attachments and updating or verifying custom application information.

Importantities       GENERAL INFORMATION       ELIGIBILITY & STATUS       EDUCATION       WORK HISTORY       SKILLS       CERTIFICATIONS       DRIVER LICENSES       REFERENCES       UPLOAD ATTACHMENT       CUSTOM CODES         equired Actions       Announcements       Flasse-complete application.       Status	- Andreage-										
Martial and a martial of a second of a											
International inter	10	Applicant Profile General Information									
<form>  Name of the second seco</form>			FLIGIBILITY & STATU	5 EDUCATION	WORK HISTOR	SKILLS	CERTIFICATIONS	DRIVER LICENSES	REFERENCES	UPLOAD ATTACHMENT	CUSTOM CODES
<form><pre>share of the set of the set</pre></form>	<b>Ny Profile</b> Required Actions			Loodanon		UNILLU	out in to arrow of	DRITER EIGENGED	NEI ERENOLU	or coap Arradiment	0007011 00013
Namin Note   Liquid Note   Note	Unfinished Applications										
<form>digit distant dist</form>	Job Descriptions					2/6/2020					
<form>member of the series of the s</form>											
<form>Note: Note: N</form>						GARY GATES					E
<form>  In initial series of the series</form>		Prior Name									
<form>NoticeIntervention of the series of the series</form>						XXX-XX-XXXX					
Nemine       0         Ande more international of the second											
kain <ul> <li>i</li> <l< td=""><td></td><td>Hispanic</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></l<></ul>		Hispanic									
a kan watering											
kale 0   kale 0 <td></td>											
Note: No											
notacian n											
Interface       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0       0 <td0< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></td0<>											
Network 0   Control C						NO					
Namia   Series						0					
Interview of the set of											
And the set of the		Other Veteran Status									
And the set of the		Disability									
Nation on longing in											
Number     Number     Number     Number     Number     Number       Read											+ ADD NI
PMM     (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2)											
		Primary Number	Type Di	escription	Number	Unlis	ted Opt In	to Text Messages		Action	
<form>         Admin       HILTITORILINOU UNE       HILTITORILINOU UNE         Record       competitioned une       HILTITORILINOU UNE       HILTITORILINOU UNE         Record       competitioned une       HILTITORILINOU UNE       HILTITORICUNE         Record       competitioned une       HILTITORICUNE       HILTITORICUNE         Record</form>		PRIMARY			(207) 999-9999	No	No			EDIT DELETE	
<form>         Admin       HILTITORILINOU UNE       HILTITORILINOU UNE         Record       competitioned une       HILTITORILINOU UNE       HILTITORILINOU UNE         Record       competitioned une       HILTITORILINOU UNE       HILTITORICUNE         Record       competitioned une       HILTITORICUNE       HILTITORICUNE         Record</form>											
<form>          Nervoir         019199999           Read         ====================================</form>											E
Failmagene finance difference differenc							02				
Atlahi Sapairang       >         Atlahi Sapairang       >         Manu Hong Sapairang       >         Manu Hong Sapairang       >         Atlahi Sapairang       > <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>margaret.freeman@tylertech.co</td> <td>m</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>						margaret.freeman@tylertech.co	m				
		Alternate E-mail									
Makanian Sakan ya Kangada9.0Martina Bandia Rapida $0$ Hartina Bandia Rapida $0$ Pat Tana $0$ Pat Tana $0$ Atabada Kalya Sata </td <td></td> <td>E</td>											E
Haime media       Na         At The       Na         Toma       Na         Atable Ope       Na         Atable											
Na Image       No         Problem       No         Availed Days       No         Temporation       No         Temporation       No         Availed Days       No         Availed Day											
Partine       No         Analolo Type       No         Analog       No <td< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>\$0.00</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></td<>						\$0.00					
Available Trypts       No         Available Trypts       No         Service Tryptspect       Yes         Temporyse Tryptspect       No         Exployment Opportunities       No         Service Tryptspect       No         Available Tryptspect       Advance         Advance       No         Advance       No         Advance       Applied         Advance       <											
Availabilityidis       No         Summer Struktion       Yeis         Territory Struktion       No         Explorent Opportunities       No         Account rives       Apelues         Account rives       Apelues         1       Not Apelues         Director Conference       Not Apelues         1       Not Apelues         Director Conference       Not Apelues         1       Not Apelues         Director Conference       Not Apelues         Not Apelues       Not Apelues         Director Conference       Not Apelues         Not Apelues       Not Apelues         Internation Suppervision       Not Apelues         Not Apelues       Not Apelues         Not Apelues       Not Apelues         Internation Suppervision       Not Apelues         Intern						No					
Bummet Employee         Yet           Tempory Employee         Document Service         No           Employment Operatides         Service         Memory Employee         Memory Employee           Accounting         Accounting         Accounting         Accounting         Memory Employee           Accounting         Accounting         Accounting         Accounting         Accounting         Accounting           Incomory Employee         Accounting         Accounting         Accounting         Accounting         Accounting <t< td=""><td></td><td>Part Time</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>No</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>		Part Time				No					
Importantion     No       Engloyment Coportunities     Activation Component     Activation Component       Ind Cassingtion     Applica     Activation Component       Accounting     Applica     OPEN     Applica       1     Not Applica     OPEN     Applica       Description of Finance     Not Applica     OPEN     Applica       Description of Finance     Not Applica     OPEN     Applica       Instantion of Applica     Not Applica     OPEN     Applica       Instantion of Finance     Not Applica     OPEN     Applica		Part Time Available Days				No No					
Engloyment Opportunities         Andread Status         Andread Status         Andread Status         Andread Status           Accountinus         APPLED         OPEN         Intitibus REAPPLY           1         Not APPLED         OPEN         APPLED           1         Not APPLED         OPEN         APPLY		Part Time Available Days Available Nights				No No No					
Job Execution     Acedemic Instance     Acedemic Instance     Acedemic Instance       ACCOUNTING     APPLED     OPEN     Immediate Instance       1     NOT APPLED     OPEN     APPLY		Part Time Available Days Available Nights Summer Employee				No No No Yes					
ACCOUNTINGAPPLEDOPENWITTERAW REAPPLY1NOT APPLEDOPENAPPLY1NOT APPLEDOPENAPPLYDEECTOR OF FINANCENOT APPLEDOPENAPPLYEXAM TESTING SUPERVISORNOT APPLEDOPENAPPLYIMANAGERNOT APPLEDOPENAPPLY		Part Time Available Days Available Nights Summer Employee				No No No Yes					
T     NOT APPLED     OPEN     APPLY       1     NOT APPLED     OPEN     AppLY       DEECTOR OF FINANCE     NOT APPLED     OPEN     AppLY       EXAM TESTING SUPERVISOR     NOT APPLED     OPEN     AppLY       ITMANAGER     NOT APPLED     OPEN     AppLY		Part Time Available Rays Summe Employee Temporary Employee Employment Opportunities				No No No Yes					
T     NOT APPLED     OPEN     APPLY       DRECTOR OF FINANCE     NOT APPLED     OPEN     APPLY       EXAM TESTING SUPERVISOR     NOT APPLED     OPEN     APPLY       IT MANAGER     NOT APPLED     OPEN     APPLY		Part Time Available Rays Summe Employee Temporary Employee Employment Opportunities				No No No Yes	Job Statua	Action			
DIRECTOR OF FNANCE     NOT APPLED     OPEN     APPLY       EXAM TESTING GUPERVISOR     NOT APPLED     OPEN     AppLY       IT MANAGER     NOT APPLED     OPEN     AppLY		Part Time Available Days Available Nights Summar Employee Temployment Opportunities Job Descuedors			Application Status	No No No Yes			W REAPPLY		
EXAM TESTING SUPERVISOR NOT APPLED OPEN APPLY IT MANAGER NOT APPLED OPEN APPLY		Part Time Available Days Available Hights Summer Employee Temporynemt Opportunities Jak Descretion Accounting			Application Status	No No No Yes	OPEN	WITHDRA	W REAPPLY		
IT MANAGER NOT APPLED OPEN APPLY		Part Time Available Days Available Hights Summer Employee Temporary Employee Employment Opportunities Job Description Accountinus			Áreleation Status APPLIED NOT APPLIED	No No No Yes	OPEN OPEN	WITHDRA	W REAPPLY		
		Part Time Available Rays Available Hights Summer Employee Temporary Employee Employment Opportunities Jack Descontian Accountmos			Analization Status APPLIED NOT APPLIED NOT APPLIED	No No No Yes	OPEN OPEN OPEN	WITHDRA APPLY APPLY	W REAPPLY		
©2020 Tyler Technologies, inc.		Part Time Available Days Available Hights Summer Employee Employment Opportunities Audo Esecutions AccountInities I DiscountInities I DiscountI I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I			APPLED NOT APPLED NOT APPLED NOT APPLED NOT APPLED	No No No Yes	OPEN OPEN OPEN OPEN	WITHDRA APPLY APPLY APPLY	W REAPPLY		
©2020 Tyler Technologies, Inc.		Part Time Available Reys Available Hights Summer Employee Employment Opportunities Lab Description AccountINIS 1 DIRECTOR OF FINANCE EXAM TESTINIS SUPERVISOR			APPLED NOT APPLED NOT APPLED NOT APPLED NOT APPLED	No No No Yes	OPEN OPEN OPEN OPEN	WITHDRA Apply Apply Apply Apply	W REAPPLY		
		Part Time Available Reys Available Hights Summer Employee Employment Opportunities Lab Description AccountINIS 1 DIRECTOR OF FINANCE EXAM TESTINIS SUPERVISOR			APPLED APPLED NOT APPLED NOT APPLED NOT APPLED NOT APPLED	No No No No	OPEN OPEN OPEN OPEN OPEN	WITHDRA Apply Apply Apply Apply	W REAPPLY		



### **Upload Attachments**

The Upload Attachments page allows applicants to upload documents associated with applications, such as a resumé, references, or educational history.

To attach a document, applicants can navigate to the file on a networked or personal directory and then click Upload. Any documents previously attached are listed on the page.

🤣 tyler								θ
Home	Applicant Profile							
Employment Opportunities								
My Profile	GENERAL INFORMATION ELIGIBILITY & STATUS	EDUCATION WORK HISTORY	SKILLS	CERTIFICATIONS	DRIVER LICENSES	REFERENCES	UPLOAD ATTACHMENT	CUSTOM CODES
Required Actions								
Unfinished Applications	Here you may upload a file (example: an updated resume, list of Click the Browse button and navigate to the file of your choice, th							
Job Descriptions	Select and upload a new file attachment							
	Choose File No file chosen							
	UPLOAD							
	Previously submitted attachments							
	File name	Date submitted						
	Application Copy 2.html	4/17/2020						
	Freeman Resume Test.docx	4/17/2020						
hamma m					~ ~ ~ ~	- 00000	······ ~ ·····	~~~~ ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~

#### **Required Actions**

Required Actions displays any required actions for the jobs for which the applicant has applied. For example, if the applicant must complete tasks as part of the application process, such as an interview or a training course, they can self-schedule interview time or course options on the calendar.

Home		uired Acti									
Employment Opportunities	Required	Required actions for: ACCOUNTING V									
	EXPLOR	ATORY Not complet	ed								
My Profile	FINAL N	lot completed									
Required Actions	Search th	he calendar below fo	or interviews or course	s that fit your schedule	. To register, click on one	e, then click "SIGN UP".					
Unfinished Applications								< >			
Job Descriptions		April 19 Sunday	April 20 Monday	April 21 Tuesday	April 22 Wednesday	April 23 Thursday	April 24 Friday	April 25 Saturday			
	12			EXPLORAT							
	1			EXPLORAT							
	2			EXPLORAT							
	3										
	4										
	5										
	6										
	7										
	8										



### **Unfinished Applications**

Unfinished Applications provides applicants with a list of applications that have not yet been submitted. They have the option to resume or delete the unfinished applications.

🤸 tyler			8
Home	Unfinished Applications	Save Date and Time	Actions
Employment Opportunities	HISTORIC PRESERVATION SPECIALIST	02/06/2020 10:14:33 AM	RESUME DELETE
My Profile			
Required Actions			
Unfinished Applications			
Job Descriptions			
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	- And and a second	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	······································

Custom Codes

Custom codes are customized application items that are maintained by your organization using the Custom Datatypes program, and then assigned to an application.

🔆 tyler										i.
Home	Applicant Profile Custom Codes									
Employment Opportunities										
My Profile	GENERAL INFORMATION	ELIGIBILITY & STATUS	EDUCATION	WORK HISTORY	SKILLS	CERTIFICATIONS	DRIVER LICENSES	REFERENCES	UPLOAD ATTACHMENT	CUSTOM CODES
Required Actions										
Unfinished Applications	Applicant Custom Codes									
Job Descriptions		OWN A DOG				×				1 ~
		BACHELORS DEGREE								
		MASTERS				а				
		DOCTORATE								1 -
		CERTIFIED				8				1 ~
		YRS OF TEACHING EXP				TEST				1 ~
		PRE-KINDERGARDEN								1 ~

Applications

Applications are created in the Munis Self Service Applications program. Using this program, you design the application sections, determine the fields to include in each section, and identify the order in which they display. As a result, fields available on the application vary according to how your organization manages the process.

Different sections of an application may display on separate pages. In this case, applicants click Next to move through the pages, completing the fields, as required. Once an application is complete, applicants can click Review & Submit prior to clicking Submit Application to complete the process.

On any application section, clicking Save for Later saves an application for completion at a later time. Enterprise ERP Self Service displays an applicant's incomplete applications on the Unfinished Applications page under Employment Opportunities. Applicants click Resume to resume an application or click Delete to remove it.



If an applicant has multiple records for items like work history, certifications, or references saved to their profile, they can remove those sections that do not pertain to the specific job for which they are applying. For example, an applicant might select to display teaching certifications when applying for a teaching position but to remove those certifications when applying for an office administration position.